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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The 86" Annual General Meeting of members of Balanoor Plantations & Industries Limited will be held as scheduled
below:

Date 29" September 2023

Time © 12.00 Noon

Place : Hotel Paraag, 3, Raj Bhavan Road,
Bengaluru - 560001

The Agenda of the Meeting will be as follows:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 317 March, 2023 and the Profit & Loss Account for
the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors together with the Audited
Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Financial Yearended 317 March, 2023.

2, To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Roy Mammen (DIN 0007 7409) who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-
appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Riyad Mathew (DIN 00627762) who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-
appointment.

4. Tore-appoint Mfs. Badari, Madhusudhan and Srinivasan, Chartered Accountant, Bangalore (FRN: 0053895 as
Statutory Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3(7) of the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) if any, M/s. Badari, Madhusudhan and
Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (FRM; 005389S) be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory
Audilor of the Company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of this Annual General Mesting up to the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2027-28."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managemenl of the Company be and is hereby authorized lo negoliate
and fix the remuneration payable to the statutory auditors and to do all such acts deeds and things as would
be required to give effect to the appointment of the Statutory Auditors

NOTES

1. The Share Transfer Register will be closed from 23" September 2023 to 29" September 2023 both days inclusive.

2. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BEE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN CRDER TO EE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED
AT THE COMPANY'S REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR
THE MEETING. A FORM OF PROXY IS ENCLOSED.

3. Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voling rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder,
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4. Members are also requested to confirm their email ID or otherwise notify changes in the email |D if there is
any, to which the Company could forward all communications, notices and coples of accounts.

5. Physical Copies of Resolution, Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association are available at the
registered office of the company for inspection by members.

g, In case of Joint holders attending the AGM, the members whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the company will be entitled to vote.

7. The members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider for converting their holding to
dematerialised form. Members can contact company or company Registrar and Transfer Agent, BgSE
FINANCIALS LTD for assistance in this regard.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For Balanoor Plantations & Industries Limited

Ashok Kuriyan

MAMAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 0081374

PLACE : Bengaluru
DATE : 28" August 2023
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BOARD'S REPORT

Ta,
The Members,
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Your Directars have pleasure in presenting their 86"
Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company and the Accounts for the Financial Year ended
31" March, 2023.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The principal activity of the company is cultivation,
manufacture and sale of Tea, Coffee, Rubber, Pepper
and Areca Mut.

Financial Performance of the Company for the financial

yearended 31" March, 2023 is summarized below:

R=.in Lakhs
Farticulars Consolidated Standztone |
001~ 2005 | 1 -0 |
Trogs Incame 145145 16057 58T | 19501 |
Frofit Before Iterest [5L.00) 12.90) a0 | @A) |
ant Depreciation N
Finance Charges 137 147 7.3 137 |
Friivein for ¥y 5140 250,47 5540 |
Depraciation
el (Loss| From T.89) B8] 345 | (8.4
Betore Tax
Provisin for Tax 434 17
Net {Loss). Profit Acer PR 167,53 1345) | (fe.d) |
Tae.
Balance of Prafil {54181 [@TE08) | (TI3.54) |i655A0) |
brought farward = = |
Balance in General TR 4] | B78.69) | @44 TE) |
Feserwe aftes ali
appropriations
Balance in Capital 1210.82 1081 10.82 | 12108
Resarye

Please refer to Note No 34 for segment wise performance.,

YEAR IN RETROSPECT

Unfavourable weather clubbed with the acute shortage of
labour has resulted in lower crop. Tea production was
marginally higher, pepper crop was good. But coffee, rubber
and arecanul crop was lower leading 1o poor performance of
the company. However, realization for Tea, Coffee, Pepper
and Areca nutwas higher than the previous vear

The All crop is estimated to be higher than the previous
year, the coffee and pepper price realization would be
higher than the last year.

The Crop estimates for the year are as follows;

Crop Kgs

Tea 4.35,000
Coffee 2,653,000
Rubber 30,900
Pepper 14,000
Areca 15.000

The Company is making all efforts to control costs &
source more Labour to increase production.All efforts
are being made to increase yield of all crops.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
administration) Rules, 2074, every company shall place
a copy of the annual retum on the website of the
campany, if any, and the web-link of such annual return
zhall be disclosed in the Board's Reportand a copy of the
annual return shall be filed with the Registrar.

The annual relurn for the financial year ended 31si
March, 2023 can found in the website of the company:
https:ffwww.balanoor.com/

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED
DURING THEYEAR UNDER REVIEW:

The Board of Direclors met Four times during the
financial year under review.

Sl. | Date of Meeting Board | No of Directors
No. Strength Present

1 | 01st June 2022 7 3

2 | 29th August 2022 7 5

3 | 31st October 2022 7 6

4 | 23rd January 2023 B 5

Total number of board meetings attended by each
director.

Crop 2022-2023 2021 -2022
Kgs Kgs
Tea 3,49,918 3,36,958
Coffee 1,446,894 2,19,283
Rubber 26,274 29,916
Pepper 18,389 14,421
Areca 6,896 21,410

The Tea crop for next year is expected to be better
however the tea price continues to be sluggish. Up o the
date of reporting, the weather continues o be very
unfavorable with insufficient rains received till may.

:L'. Name of the Director #::Eg;’; ‘;fﬂiﬁ?i:dd
1 Raoy Mammen 4
2 Zachariah Ir{'un"_.ran 4
3 Mammen Eapen 0
4 Ashok Kandathil Kuriyan 4
5 Jacob Mathew 2
& Riyad Mathew 2
7 | Mammen Philip 3
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There is no change in nature of business.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR
ASSOCIATES COMPANY

The Campany halds 99.99% Equity shares in Balanoor
Printers Limited, making it its subsidiary company within
the meaning of Section 2 (87 ) of the Companies Act 2013,
Indobloom Limited is an Associate company within the
meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act,

There is no material change in the nature of the business
of the subsidiary as well as associate Company.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a
statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the Company's subsidiary and associate in
Form AQC-1 is attached as Annexure A to the financial
statements of the Company.

Pursuant ta the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its Subsidiary Company have been prepared and is
attached to the financial statements of the company.

PARTICULARS OF LOAMS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS MADE UMDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made
by the Company under Seclion 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year undar review and hence the
said provision is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
UNDER SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

There was related parties' transactions during the period
under review. All the related parlies' transactions ware at
arm's lenath basis.

MName of Relation- Nature of Amount
Related | ship Transaction| (in Rs.)
Party '
Rohan | Relatives of | Rent Paid 6,63,000/-
Kuriyan | Key

| Management

| Personnel

Form AOC-2 is attachad as Annexure B to this report.
DIVIDEND:

The directors have not recommended any dividend far
lhe year ended 31st March, 2023, due lo insufficiency of
profits available for distribution.

MATERIAL CHANGES IF ANY AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

Mo material changes and commitments affecting the
financlal position of the Company occurred between the
ends of the Financial Year to which these financial
statements relate on the date of this report.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits
from the public during the year ended 31st March, 2023,
There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31st
March, 2023,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

Under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013, every
company having net worth of Rs.500 crore or more, or
turnover of Re, 1000 crore or more or a net profitof Rs.5
crore or more during the immediately preceding financial
year shall constitute a corporate social responsibility
committee of the board consisting of three or more
directors. The company is not falling under any of the
above category, hence there was no regulrement to
constitute a CSR Committes,

DECLARATION BY
DIRECTORS:

The Company is nat requirad to appoint independent
directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS'
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS,
POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A
DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED
UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178:

The. Company was not reguired to constitute a
Momination and Remuneration Committee under
Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
under Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,

GENERAL RESERVES

Your directors do not recommend transfer to General
Reserve for the year,

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant and materal orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
cancern stalus and Company’s operalions in fulure,

FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS:

The Auditor has nol reparted any fraud under Section
143(12).

VIGILMECHANISM:

Your Company does nol meet the criteria for vigil
mechanism under 177(9) read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, Accordingly, the disclosures prescribed
thereunderare notapplicabla.

RESERVATION AND QUALIFICATION ON
AUDITOR'S REPORT:

There are no gqualifications or adverse remark by the
auditorin his report.

INDEPEMDENDENT




Balumoor Bean

COMPLIAMCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your company has complied all related provisions of the
Secretarial Standard | and Secretarial Standard Il issued
by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
ANDOUTGO

The details of conservation of energy. lechnalogy
absarption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as
follows:

A)  Conservation of energy:

The Company has adopted various measures to
conserve energy and has taken several
measures such as use of Coffee Stumps /
Firewood instead of coal and diesel and recycling
of drier stove energy. The Company has also
laken steps for improved maintenance of
systems.

(i} Energy conservalion measuras taken: Recycling of
drier stove energy used for withering

{i} Steps taken by the Company for ulilizing altermate
sources of energy:

(i) Use of Firewood whenever available, instead of
Coal

(iv) Capital investment on energy conservation
equipment: nil

B} Technologyabsorption:

I The efforts made towards technology absorption;
the new and improved means of irrigation as well
as soil energy conservation and plant pathology as
suggested by UPAS! from time to time is being
implemented. Further, Coffee curing works have
been expanded for efficient and economic curing,

i, The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; Not quantifiable,

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:
Earnings in Foreign Currency Rs.3,59,60,778 /-
Foreign Bank charges Rs.16,440/-

DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment
at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules there
under for prevention and Redressal of complaints of
sexual harassment at workplace.

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has not
recelved any complaints on sexual harassment.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

In today's economic scenario risk management
assumes a lot of importance and the aim of risk
management is being able to identify, monitor and take
precautionary measuras in respect of events that may
pose a risk for the business. As a practice the
management continuously evaluates the uncertainties
and risks that may impacl the business and takes steps
to mitigate the same to the best possible level,

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The Board is duly constituted with the following
directors as on this report date:

SI.Nn_; Name of the Directors DIN
1 ASHOK KANDATHIL KURIYAN 00081374
2 ROY MAMMERN Q0077408
3 FACHARIAH KURIYAN Q0078109
4 MAMMEN EAPEN 00081267
5 | JACOB MATHEW 00090387

6| RIYAD MATHEW 00627762
T MAMMEN PHILIP 01091481

Mr. Roy Mammen (DIN 0007402) Direclor of the
company retires by rotation and is eligible for re-
appointment,

Mr. Riyad Mathew(DIN 008277862) Director of the
company retires by rotation and is eligible for re-
appointment.

Board of Directors of the Company express their deep
condolences al the untimely and sad demise of Mr.
Mammen Eapen. The Company and ils Board are truly
indebted to Late Mammen Eapen for his contribution to
the Company

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that;

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

b} they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the Financial Year and of the
prafitof the company for thal period,

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequaie accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;




oF
TF
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED BI

Ehoee

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a gaing
cancerm basis;

&) they have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively;
and

fy they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and
aperating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Mis Badari, Madhusudhan and Srinivasan, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 0053885), were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the
Annual General Meeting held for financial year 2018-19
until the conclusion of Annual general meeting to be held
during the year 2022,

Further, the company has appointed M/s Badari,
Madhusudhan and Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Mo. 005389S) to act as Statutory
Auditors until the conclusian of Annual General Meeting
to be held for financial year 2027-28.

SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

Fursuant to Section 204 read with Rule 8 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Auditis applicable to
the Company for the year under review.

Further, the Secretarial Audit Report as provided by M/s.
KDSH and Associates LLP, Practicing Company
Secretaries for the Financial Year ended, 31st March,
2023 is annexed herewith for your kind perusal and
information.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Amendmenl Rules, 2014, the cosl audil was not
applicable.

INSOLVENCY PROCEEDINGS:

The Company has not initiated any proceedings under
Insolvency Bankruptocy Code 2016 during the financial
year 2022-2023.

VALUATION:

The Campany during the financial year 2022-2023 has
not undertaken any valuation under Section 247 of
Companies Acl, 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL
a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought back any of ils securities
during the year under review.

b. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any sweal equity shares
during the year under review.

c. BONUS SHARES

The Company has not Issued any bonus shares during
tha year under review,

d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

The company has nol provided any stock oplion
scheme to the employees.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID DIVIDENDS TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

The unpaid dividends pertaining to the year 2014-15 of
Rs. 33,674 have been transferred to Investors
Educalion & Prolection Fund on 13th January 2023,

REGISTRATION OF COMPANY WITH
"DISSEMINATION BOARD"

The Bangalore Stock Exchange & WMadras Stock
exchange, where the Company's shares were listed,
have been de-recognized and the Company has been
placed under Dissemination Board,

SEBI issued a Circular dated 10th Oclober, 2016 for
ELC's on Dissemination Board. The company has made
representations to SEBI regarding the provisions laid
down in the mentioned Circular. The Company has
approached the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka and
filed a Writ petition against the said Circular and has
obtained a stay Order inthis regard.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors place on record their sincere thanks to
Shareholders, members of the Staflf, Agents, bankers,
business associates, consultants, and wvarious
government authorities for their continued support
during the year under review.

For BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES
LIMITED

For on behalf of the board of direclors

ASHOK KANDATHIL KURIYAN ZACHARIAH KURIYAN
Managing Director Director
DIN: D0DB1374 DIN: QO07E109
Address: #G-D, Addrass: Kadavil Buildings,
Fairfield Apariments Kanjikuzy
12, Benson Cross Road, Kottayam,
Jayamahal Bangalore-560046 Kerala - 686004

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 28.08.2023
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ANNEXURE-1

Form ADC-1

(Pursuant to first provison to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, (2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs.)

Sl. No. Particulars Details
1. Mame of the subsidiany Balanoor Printers Limited
2, Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company's reporting
period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the

last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of fnreign subsidiaries

4. Share capital 49.10
5. Reserves & surplus 301.29
6. Total assets 355.10
7. Total Liabilities 355.10
8. Investments

9. Turnover

10. Profit before taxation 16.69
11. Provision for taxation 4.33
12. Profit after taxation 11.36
13. Proposed Dividend

14. % of shareholding 99.99%
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Part B-Associates and Joint Ventures
(Pursuant to first provison to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013)

PARTICULARS

DETAILS

1. Mame of Associates or Joint Ventures

INDO BLOOM LIMITED

2. Latest audited Bdance Sheet Date

317 March, 2023

3. Date anwhich the Associate or Joint
Venture was associated or acauired

79" April, 1993

4, Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures
held by the company an the year end

Mo. 9,99,960/ -
Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint 99,99,600/ -
Venture

Extent of Holding(in percentage) 49.99%

5. Description of how there is significant
influence

There is a significant influence due ta
percentage of Share Capital held

6. Reason why the associate/Joint
venture not consdidated.

Not Applicable

7. Net worth attributable to shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

10,38,340

B. Profit or Loss for the year

1,43,03,000

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consoldation

For BALANDOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ASHOK KANDATHIL KURIYAN
Manaaging Director
DIN; DODE1374
Address: #G-D, Fairfield Apartmeanis
12, Benson Cross Road,
Jayamahal Bengaluru-560046

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 28.08.2023

Faor on behalfl af the board of directors

Zachariah Kuriyan
Director
DIN: 00078109

Address; Kadavil Buildings, Kanjikuzy

Kottayam, Kerala - B86004
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Annexure -l

FORM NO. AOC -2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8({2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third provison thereto.

Details of Contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Mame of the related party and nature of relationship \ Nil il
Nature of contracts/arrangements/iransactions | Mil il
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions Nl Nil
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or tfransactions including the value, if any | il Mil
Detat approvel by iteBomd. 1 aoy S
Amount paid as advances, if any Ml il
Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
provison to section 188 | Nil Mil

Details of material Contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Mame of the related party and nature of relationship Raohan Kuriyan
Relatives of Key Management
Personnel

Mature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 1. Rent paid

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions On going

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including

the value, if any | Rs.6,63,000/-

Date of approval by the Board, if any | WA

Amount paid as advances, if any | -

Date on which the special resolulion was passed in general meeling as
requirad under provisan lo seclion 188 | NA

All the transactions entered are under Arms length price | Yes

For Balanoor Plantations and Industries Limited

Far on behalf of the board of directors

ASHOK KANDATHIL KURIYAN Zachariah Kuriyan
Managing Director Director
DIM: 00081374 DiM: 00078108
Address: #G-D, Fairfield Apartments Address: Kadavil Buildings, Kanjikuzy
12, Banson Cross Road, Jayamahal, Bengaluru-580048 Koltayam, Kerala - 6BB004

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 28.08.2023

10
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Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31" March, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
carporate practices by BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AMD INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: UT0102KA1974PLC002641)
(hereinafter called the Company). Secrelarial Audil was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report thal in our opinion, the Company has, during the
financial year ended on 3ist March 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minule books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financlal year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of;

i. The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder,

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thareunder, -Not applicable

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Managemant Act, 1998 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of fareign
direct investment and averseas direct investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Mo such transaction took
place during the Audit Period),

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEB| Act') - tha below mentioned sub-points a)toi) are not applicable.

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading ) Regulations, 2015;

¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure  Reguirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

&) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008,

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993,

g)] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998;

i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremeants) Regulations, 2015,

vi. Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

Labour Laws:
a) The Factories Act, 1948
b) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
c) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
d) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
g) The Industrial Establishments (National and Festival Holidays) Act, 1963
f)  The Kamataka Daily Wage Employees Welfare Act, 2012
g) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
h) The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
i} The Child Labour {Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970
1} The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
k) The Employess State Insurance Act, 1948
I} The Karmnataka Plantations Labour Act, 1951
m) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013
n) The Shops & Establishments Act, 1961
o) Indian Boilers Act, 1923
Environmental Laws:
a) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
b} The Air (Prevention & Cantrol of Pollution) Act, 1981
c) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.
The Company is not discharging the contaminated water al the public drainsfrivers. The company has efficient water
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treatment plants at its factory premises
The company has been disposing the hazardous waste as per applicable rules.

Othar Laws:

a) The Karnataka Legal Metrology (Enforcement) Rules, 2011
b) Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

c) The Competition Act, 2002

d) The Trademark Act, 1999

Wae have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i Secrelarial Standards Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and
General Mesting i.e. 35-1 and 5S-2.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. menfioned above

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws. like direct and indirect tax laws, since the

same have bean subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company |s duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive

Directors, There is no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the penod under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detsiled notes on agenda were sent at

least sevan days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda

ltems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeling.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board of Direclors were

uranimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequalte sysiems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operafions of the

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there is no specific events / actiens having a major bearing on the company's affairs in

pursuance of the above referredlaws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards. efc. referrad to above.

Place: Bengaluru R haa-:::gt:g::;
Date: 28" August, 2023 Designated Partner

FCS 10056| CP No: 12924
LIDIMN:FO10058E000880134
Peer Review No. 2406/2022

To,

The Members,

BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Dur report of even date is 1o be read along with this letler.

. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these secretarial records hased on our audi,

2, We have followed the audil practices and process as were appropriate (o obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of

the contents of the Secratarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in

secrefanal records, We belisve that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company,

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation aboul the compliance of laws, rules and regulations

and happening of events elc.,

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable faws, Rules, Regulations, standards is the responsibility of

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, authorized representatives during the
conduct of the audit and alse on the review of quarterly compliance report by the respective departmental heads/ Managing
Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adeguate systems and process and control mechanism
exist in the Company to menitor compliance with applicable genaral laws like labour ltaws & Environment laws and Data
protection policy.

8. Woe further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws has not been
reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

o o;m AW

For KDSH & Associates LLP
Place: Bengaluru Kiran Desai
Date: 28" August, 2023 Designated Partner

FCS 10056| CP No: 12924
UDIMN:FO10056ED0008B0134
Peer Review Mo, 2406/2022
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BADARI MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN
Ghartered Accountants
PHOME 41107447 E-mail | o, s 1993 @gmail cam

"Sumagiri”, 1st Floor, 9th Main Road
Sector 6. H.8.R, Layout, Bangaluru - 560 102

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

1.01 We have audited the accompanying Standalone
financial statements of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS &
INDUSTRIES LIMITED, Bangalore (hereinafter referred
to as "the Company"), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheel as al March 31, 2023, the Standalone
Statements of Profit and Loss and Standalone Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes 1o the
financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as
"the Standalone financial statements") and other
explanatory information.

1.02 In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements give the information
raquired by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
State of Affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and
its loss and Cash fiows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

2.01 We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of tha
Companies Act, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the ICAl together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and ICAl's Code of Ethics,

2.02 We believe thal lhe audil evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial
statermnents.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters,

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 701, Key audit
matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor's Report thereon

3.01 The Company's Board of Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Board's Report including Annexures to the Board's
Report .other Shareholder's information and Business
Responsibility Report but does not include the
Consolidated and Standalone financial statements and
our auditor's report therean.

3.02 Our opinion on the Standalone financial statemenis
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

3.03 In connection with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other Information Is matenally inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

3.04 |f, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

5.01 The Company's Board of Directors are responsible
for the preparation and presentation of these
Standalone financial statements in lerms of the
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cashflows in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Aclt for
safeguarding the assets and for prevenling and
detecling frauds and other irregularities, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial
statements thal give a true and fair view and are free
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from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor,

5.02 In preparing the Standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concemn,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends fo
liguidate the Company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative butto do so0.

5.03 Those Board of Directors' are also responsible for
overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

6.01 Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance
about whether the Standalone financial statements as a
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstaterments
can arise from fraud ar error and are considered material
if, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected lo influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

6.02 As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due lo fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audil evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate lo
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than the one resulling from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

. Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

. Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates and related disclasures
made by the managemant

- Conclude on the appropriatenesss of
management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relaled to evenits or conditions thal may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem. |f we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion,
Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our audilor's report.
However, fulure events or conditions may cause
lhe Company lo cease o conlinue as a going
CONCEr;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the Standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in
the financial statements that, Individually or in
aggregate, makes It probabie that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider guantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
inthe financial statements

. We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and ftiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we ldentify
during our audit

. We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be though! lo bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7.01 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
givein "Annexure A" a stalement on the mallers specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

7.02 Asg required by Seclion 143(3) of the Act, we report o
the extent applicable that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledae and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Standalone

financial statements;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kepl by the Company so far as il
appears from our examination of those books;

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone
Staterment of Profit & Loss, and the Standalone
Cash flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalona financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, as amended fram time to time;

On the basis of the written representations
received from the Directors of the Company as at
31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as at
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a
Directorin terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Campany
and the operating effectivenass of such controls,
please refer to our separate report in "Annexure
B

In Owur Opinion and best of our information and
according to the explanation given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 187(16) of the companies act
2013,

Wilh respect o the other matters lo be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations In its financial position of the
Company in Note 28 to the Standalone Financial
Statements;

b) The Company did not have any long term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

c) An amount of Rs 33.7 thousand had been
transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the
current year.

{d) (i) The managemant has represanted thal in
MNate No 47, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities
("intermediaries"}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, direclly or indirectly

(i)

(iii)

lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the
bast of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes 1o the accounts, no funds
have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or investin other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provida any guaranitee, securily or the like on
behall of the Ullimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audil procedures we have
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (i) and (i)
mentioned above contain any material
misstatement; and

The Company has not declared dividend or paid
dividend during the year

MCA vide notification dated 31.03.2022 has
exiended the requirement of maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a
feature of recording audit trail (Edit Log) facility as
per proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 to financial year
commencing on or after 1st April 2023 and
accordingly reporting under Rule 11 (g) of
Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment
Rule 2021 is not applicable for the financial year
ended 31st March 2023.

for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan

Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 0053895

MA Ravishankar

(Fartner)

M.NO.: 023269

UDIN: 23023269BGYKGY 7398

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01.09.2023
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(i)

(iif)

Annexure "A'

To the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 7.01 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible assets of the Company:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantilative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment;

(B) As explained lo us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company does
not have any intangible assels so reporting on this
point does notarise;

(b) As ewplained to us and based on our
examination of records, the management has
carried out physical verification of Property, Plant
and Equipmeants in accordance with the phased
program of physical verification desighed to cover
all the items over a period of three years, which is
considered reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of ils assets and
na discrepancies were said to be found on such
verification during the year;

(c) As explained to us and based on our
examination of records, the title deeds of
immaovable properties are held in the name of the
Company. However, in respect of certain
immaovable propertias, we were informed that the
litle deeds have been deposited with the bankers
as security for availing loans. The Company has
obtained confarmation from the said banks in this
respecl.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property,
Plantand Equipment during the year,

(e} As informed to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are panding against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder. Thus further
reporting thereon does not arise,

(a) Inventories have been physically verified by
the management at reasonable intervals during
the period under audit and having regard to the
nature of the business and volume of operations,
we are of the opinion that coverage and
procedure for varification is appropriate. We have
been informed that discrepancies of 10% ar more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory was
not noticed on verification.

(b)) As there is no working capital limit sanction in

excess of five crore rupees during any paint of
time ofthe year, reporting thereon does not arise.

As the informed to us, the Company during the
year has not made investments in, provided any

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

(b)

wiii})

(ix)

guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in nature of loan, secured or
unsecured to Companies, Firm, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore,
reporling on 3 (iii} (a) to (f) of the said order does
nol arise;

In view of what is stated in (iii) above, reporting
compliance under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act does not arise.

The company has not accepted any deposits.
Therefore, the provision of clause (v) of Para 3 of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable to the company

The maintenance of cosl records has nol been
specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Act for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Therefore,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of Companies
{Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 does not arise;

(a) According to the information and
explanations agiven to us, the Company is
generally regular In depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employess’ Stale Insurance contributions,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax
and Other applicable statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities and there were no
undisputed amounts payable as at 31.3.2023,
which were in arrears for the period of more than
six months from the date they became payable;

According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no statutory dues which
have not been deposited as at 31st March, 2023,
anaccoun! of dispute;

On the basis of examination of records of the
Company and the information and explanations
given to us, there were no transactions which
were not recorded in books of account which
was surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961;

{a) On the basis of examination of records of the
Company and the information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings fo
any lender,

(b} On the basis of examination of records of the
Company and the information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the company has not
been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank
of financial institution or other lenders or
Governmeant or any Government authorities.

16



oF
TF
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED BI

g

{x)

i)

b)

c)

{xii)

{ i)

i{c) The company has not obtained any term loans
from any lender, therefore reporting on this does
notarise.

{d) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the Company, the funds raised on
short term basis have not been utilised for long
lerm purposes

(e) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meel the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
arjoint ventures,

(f) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the Company has not raised any
laans during the year on pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, Joint ventures, associates

The Company has not raised moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause 3(x) of the said order does
not arise;

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to
the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year,

According fe the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there is no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government,

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no whistle-blower
complaints received during the year by the
company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore,

reporting under clause 3 (xii) (a) to (¢) of the said
orderdoes not anse,

Transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting
standards;

(xiv) (a) The Company is not required to conduc! an

internal audit under section 138 of Companies Act,
2013. The internal contrals that axists in the

(xv)

(xwi)

company, commensurate with size and nature of
the business.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with the Directors'
or persons connacted with them. Therefore,
reporting compliance under section 192 of the Act
does not arise;

a) According to the information and explanations
given o us and based on our examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company is nol
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Therefore, the
provisions of clause (xvi) (3) of Para 3 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not
applicable to the Company.

b} According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the company has not conducted
any Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities and is not required to hold Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Therefore, the provisions of clause (xvi) (b) of Para
3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable (o the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Therefore, the provisions of clause (xvi) (c) of Para
3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations
given o us and the records of the Company
examined by us, The Company does not have any
CIC in the group. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xvi) (d) of Para 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable
to the Company

{xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the

current financial year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year;

Rs. In thausand

Particulars

FY 2022-12 Particulars F.Y 2021-22

Cash losa

4,605 Cash Profit 2484

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory

Auditors' during the year accordingly, the
provisions of clause (xviii) of Para 3 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are
nol applicable lo the Company.
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(xix) On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Standalohe
financial statements & knowledge of the Board of
Directors’ and management plans, inour opinion
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of
audil report that the Company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of ane year from the balance sheet date;

We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

The requirementis as stipulated by the provisions
of section 135 of the Companies Act is not

(xx)

applicable to the company. Accordingly, the
requirements to report on clause 3 (xx) (a) to (b)
ofthe order does not arise;

{xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is
not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in
respect of the said clause has been included in

this report,

for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan
Chartered Accountants
FRM: 0053895

(MA Ravishankar)

Partner

M. Mo.023269

UDIN: 23023269BGYKGYT398

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01.08.2023

Annexure "B"
To the Independent Auditors’ Report
{Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' Section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
AC- !1}

1.01 We have audited the Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reparting of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS
& INDUSTRIES LIMITED, Bangalore ("the Company"),
as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

2.01The Board of Directors’ of the Company are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intermal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial
Controls aver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient canduct of its business, the safeguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.01 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our auditin
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guldance Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards
onAuditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance MNote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate intermal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls oparated affectively in all
material respacts.

3.02 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence, about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audil of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included,
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based onthe assessed risk.

3.03 The pracedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether dueto fraud orerror.
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3.04 We belleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system aver financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contreols owver

Financial Reporting

4.01 A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's Internal financial
canlrol aver financial reporting includes thase policies
and procedures that:

{1}  pertain to the maintenance of records that in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary lo permil preparalion
of financial statements In accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles and that
receipts and expendilures of the Company are
being made only in accaordance with
authorizations of the Management and Directors'
ofthe Company; and

(2)

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acaulsition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assels lhal could have a malerial effecl on lhe

Financial Statements.,

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

5.01 Because of the inherent limitations of intemal
financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management,
override of cantrols, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to fulure periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6.01 In our opinion, to the best of our information and
according fo the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
such Internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023 based
an the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Campany, considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Repaorting issued by the ICAI,

for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0053893

(MA Ravishankar)

Partner

M. No.023269

UDIN: 23023269BGYKGYT7398

Place; Bengaluru
Date: 01.09.2023

18



BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN ;: UT0102KA1974PLC0O02641
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

[Rs.In Thausands)

’ Note As at 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022
Particulars No. = F
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharehoiders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 6,168 6,168
Ib) Reserves and Surplus 70,633 84,091
Sub Total - A 76,807 90,259
Non-Current Ligbilities
(a) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 61,258 62,684
Sub Total-B 61,258 _ 62,684
Current Liabilities
(a} Shorl-Term Borrowings 5 16,725 0,253
i) Trade Payables 6 1,542 1,497
() Cther Current Liabilities T 11,765 13,151
(d) Short-Term Provisions ] 373 3,129
Sub Total -C 33,745 27,030
Total (A+B+C) 1,71,810 1,79.973
Il. Assets
Mon-Cument Assets
(a} Property, Plant and Equipment ] 44, T18 46,307
(b)) Mon-Current Investments 10 16,684 16, 684
() Lang Term Loans and Advances 1 14,273 14,564
id) Other Non-Current Assets 12 23,338 22,523
Sub Total-D T 99,013 1,00,078
Current Assets
(a) Inveniones 13 60,176 G5, 694
(b} Trade Receivables 14 855 2,656
(z) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 2,31 1,997
(d} Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 9,395 9,548
Sub Total-E 72,797 70,895
Total (D+E) 1,71,810 1.79.873

Significant Accounting Policies1
The Motes referred to above form an
Integral part of the Balance Sheel

Subject to our Audit Report of Even Date Attached

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg, No, 0053885)

MA Ravishankar Zachariah Kuriyan
{Partner) Director
MNO,: 023269 DIN:00078109

Placa: Bangalors
Date : 01-08-2023

For and on behalf of the board

Ashok Kuriyan
Managing Director
DIN:00081374

Place ;| Bengaluru
Date @ 28-0B-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN : UT0102KA1974PLC002641
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 " March, 2023

Note Year ended 31.03.2023 Yearended 31.03.2022

Partlculars

Mo. ki F
I. Revenue from Operations 17 1,358,941 1,31,621
I Other Income 18 3,627 2,980
. Total Revenue (1+1) 1,43,568 “1.34,501
I Expensaes: 19 - 0
Cost of Materials Consumed 25,903 23,342
Purchases 8,918 §,207
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 5898 (1,385)
Employeae Benefits Expensea 93,680 92,232
Finance Costs 736 138
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 4,947 5,340
Other Expenses 15,938 16,451
Tolal Expenses 1,57,020 1.42.325
v Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (Il - IV) {13,452) ~(7,824)
Wi, Exceptional Items -
Vil.  Profil Before Extraordinary llems and Tax (W-\1) (13,452) (7.824)
Vill.  Extraordinary llems .
IX.  Profit Before Tax (Vv (13,452) _ (7.824)
x Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax
Xl Profil{iLoss) For the Period from Continuing Operations (IX-X) (13,452) ~ (7,824)
XIl.  Profitf{Loss) from Discontinuing Operations
Xlll.  Tax Expense of Discontinuing Operations
XV, Profit{Loss) from Disconfinuing Operations [X11-X111)
XV, Profiti{Loss) for the Period (X| + XIV) (X1-XIV) (13,452) ~(7.B24)
XVl Earning per Equity Share: -
(1) Basic (21.81) (12.69)
(2) Diluted (21.81) (12.69)

The Motes referred to above form an Integral part
of the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Subject to our Audit Report of Even Date Attached

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the board
(Firm Reg, No, 0053885)

MA Ravishankar Zachariah Kuriyan Ashok Kuriyan
{Partner) Director Managing Director
M.NO.: 023269 DIN:00078109 DIN:00081374

Flace: Bangalore Place : Bengaluru
Data : 01-08-2023 Date @ 28-0B-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN : UT0102KA1974PLC002641 4
STANDALONE CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%' MARCH, 2023

{Rs In Thousands)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars ] 7 st Ma%ch 2023 31st Ha{nh 2022

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONG ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax (13,452) (7,824)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 4,947
Intarest paid 736

5,683 5478
Operationg Profit before Working capital changes (7.769) (2.346)
Adjustments for;
Inventones 5518 (491)
Trade Recsivables 1.801 (B&T)
Long Term Loans & Advances 29 -
Short Term Loans and Advances 153 ar4
Other Long Term Liabilities (1.426) 1,792
Other non - current assets {815} (702}
Trade Payahles 45 290
Other Current Liabilities (1,386) (B71)
Short Term Provisions 584 (62)
Increase/Decrease in Unpaid devidends daposit account 4,765 [34B6)
Cash generated from Operations (3,004) (2.692)
Tax Pald / Provision for Tax -
Cash flow before Prior-Period items {3,004) [2,692)
Prior Period items -
Net Cash from Operating Activities - Total A (3,004) {Z2.692)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed assets {3,358) (1,570)
Incraase/Decrease in Investments
Net Cash from Investing Activities {3.358) {1,570)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term borrowings
Increase / (Decrease) In Short Term borrowings T.472
Interest Paid {736)
Mel Cash fram / (Used In) Financing Activities - Tolal C 6,736 1,809
Mel Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents - A+B+C ar4 (2,452)
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opaning Balance) 1,997 4.449
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 2,371 1,987

374 (2,452)

Reconciliattion of Cash and Cashequivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balanca Sheet Refer Nota Mo, 15 ) 1,128 775
Add: Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalants
{ As defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements ) - Unpaid Dividend Account 1 34
Bank balance assecurity for SalesTax Dept and Bank Guarantees 1,241 1,188
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2.3M 1,997

Subject to our Audit Report of Even Date Attached

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the board
(Firm Reg. No, 00538385)

MA Ravishankar Zachariah Kuriyan Ashok Kuriyan
{Partner) Director Managing Director
M.NO.: 023269 DIN:00078109 DIN:00081374

Flace: Bangalore Place : Bengaluru
Data : 01-08-2023 Date @ 28-0B-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
Motes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

1l

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and preparation of Financial
Statements:

a. The Financial Statements have been prepared
on a going concem basis under the historical cost
convention on accrual basis in accordance with
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
and Accounting Standards notified under
Section133 of The Companies Act 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and amendments thereon shall continue to
apply. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied and are consistent with
those applied in the previous year, except for
changes in accounting policy, if any, discussed
more fully elsewhere.

Use of Estimates: The praparation of the financial
statements, in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles, reguire
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the end of the reparting period.

Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis and revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, Plant
and Equipment are stated at cost of acguisition,
including any attributable cost for bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use less
accumulaled depreciation and impairment loss,

a. In respect of Land and Development, expenditure
incurred up 1o bearing is capitalized.

Expenditure on new planting: Expenditure on new
planting including upkeep & maintenance expenses
on immature plants are capitalized under
"Davelopment to Plantation”,

The replanting expenses spent by the Company
during the yearis charged off as expenses".

Further "Coaly/Labour lines" which are of temporary
in nature are treated as "purely temporary” structures
and dealt with accordingly.

a. Depreciation on Property Plant and equipment is

Vr

Vi

VII.

Wil

provided on the cost of an asset or other
substituted cost less its estimated residual value
on the SLM method, over the usaful life of the
assets as prescribed under Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. For addition to assets during the
course of the year, depreciation/ amortization is
being charged on a proportionate basis from the
date of put to use. For deletion/sale of assets
during the course of the year, depreciation/
amortization is being charged on a proportionate
basis till the date of cessation of use/sale.

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to assess if there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss to the extent carrying amount of an
assel exceeds the recoverable amaount.

Mursery: Expenditure on Nursery is accumulated
and charged to expenses account in the year of
planting.

Earnings Per Share

a. Basic Eamings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit/ loss attnibutable to equity
shareholders by the weighted awverage of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

b. Diluted earmings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit / loss attributable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the
period adjusted for the effects of dilutive
potential equity shares.

Investments:

Investments are classified as long term
investments and current investments. Current
investmenis are stated al lower of cost and fair
value. Long term investments are usually carried
at cost and provision for diminution is made o
recognise a decline; other than temporary
separately for each individual long term
investments,

Inventories:

a. Stores & Spare parts: Stock of stores and
Spares are valued at cost using Weighted
Average cost method.
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b. Slock in trade: (al cosl or markel or average
realized price, whichever is lower) Coffee,
Areca & Pepper stocks are valued at cost
incurred at Estates, while Tea, Rubber and
other stocks are valued at "Total cost” wherever
applicable,

¢. The Closing stock of Palm & other nursery
plants have been valued at cost or market
value whichever is lower, after taking into
account cost of plants which have withered or
removed during the year.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue from sale of
goods is recognized when all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership in the goods are
transferred to the buyer which are generally on
delivery of goods. The Company retaing no
effective control of the goods transferred to a
degree usually associaled with ownership and no
significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of goods. Sales are recognized net of trade
discounts, rebates, sales taxes and excise duties,

a. Sale of old Rubber Trees/Shade trees is
recorded on receipt basis.

Income from Investments: Dividends received on
investments are accounted for as and when
received. Interest income is recognised on accrual
basis.

Government Grants/Subsidies: All subsidies
received are accounted on cash basis and treated
as revenue in the year of receipt, if not adjusted
earlier.

Employee Benefits (AS-15):
Shortterm Employee Benefits

a. Short term employee benefits are recognized
as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss, on accrual basis.

Long term Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit plan.

a. The Company Liabilities for the Gratuity are
determined as atthe end of  the financial year
by the management covering the employees
who completed 5 years of service. The
Company discharges its liability towards
Gratuity fund by making contribution to trust
Excess/shortfall will be recognized as
income/expenses in statement of profil and
loss account,

XV. Taxes on

b. The Company discharges its liability towards
Provident fund for staff employees by making
contribution to trust. Any shortfall in the annual
returnon investment of the trust as comparedto
the return fixed by the government under its
EPFO scheme is contributed by the company,

Defined contribution plan

a) The contribution under this scheme is
recognized as anexpenses in the: statement
of profit and loss All the above long term
liabilities are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a. Foreign currency transactions are accounied
for using exchange rates prevailing at the date
of the transaction. Gains and losses from
settlement of a foreign currency transaction
and from translation of monetary assets and
liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

b, Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at
the year end on account of firm commitment
transactions are marked to market and the
losses if any are recognised in the statement of
profitand loss

Income: Income Tax expenses
comprise current tax and deferred tax charge.
Current tax is determined as the amounl of tax
payable In respect of taxable income for the year
based on applicable tax rates and laws.

a, Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
exlent that there is a reasonable/virlual
certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred
tax assets will be realized. Such assets are
reviewed as at each Balance sheet date for
reassessment.

b. Cashand Cashequivalents

c. Cash Includes cash on hand and balances
with banks. Cash Equivalents are short term,
highly liquid investments, having a maturity of
three months or less from the date of its
acquisition, that are readily convertible into
known amaunts of cash and which are subject
toinsignificant risks of changes invalue,

d. Borrowing Cost: Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset s capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

24



oF
TF
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED BI

Ehoee

costs are recognized as expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

a. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when
there is a present obligation based on past
event and is probable that an outfiow of
resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the abligation and there is
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation,
Provisions are measured at the best astimate
of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the Balance shest date
and are not discounted to its present value,

b. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there
is a possible obligation arising from past
avents, the exislence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
anceurrence of one or more uncertain futura
events not wholly within the control of the
company or a present obligation that arises
from past evenis where it is not probable that
an outfiow of resources will be required to
seftle or a reliable estimate of the obligation
cannot bemade.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fs, In thoosand

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Particulars T 4

MOTE 2
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorisad:
4,000, 11.5% Tax Free Cumilative - -
Prafarence Shares of Rs. 100/- each 400 . -
8,680,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1(/- each 8,600 10,000 10,000
Issued: - Equity Shares: - -
4,945 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued - -
to the Vendors as fully paid-up 50 - -
2,58 319 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued - -
as Bonus Shares fully paid-up 2593 - -
3,52 506 Shares of Rs.10/- aach issued i <
for cash 3,525 6,168 £,168
Subscribed, Called and Paid-up: -
Equily Shares: -
4,945 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued -
to the Vendors as fully paid-up 50 -
259,313 Shares of Rs. 10/- each issued -
as Bonus Shares fully paid-up 2.503 -
3,52 506 Shares of Rs.10/- gach issued -
for cash and fully paid-up 3,525 6,168 6,168

6,168 6,168
2.1 Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Shares As At 31.03.2023 As At 31.03.2022
Mame of share holder Mo. of Shares Percentage Mo. of Shares Percentage
Life Insurance Carporation of India 92 082 14.93% a2 082 14.93%
M.M. Corporation 33387 541% 33,397 5.41%
M.M. Housing Private Limited. 55,330 897% 55,330 B.O97%

180809 1,80,809

2.2 Reconciliation of the no. of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As At 31.03.2023 As At 31.03.2022
Mo, of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,116,764 6,116,764
Add: lssued during the year - -
Mo, of Equity Shares outslanding at the end of the year 6,16, 764 6,16, 764
2.2 Shares Allotement/ Buy Backs for the period § Years of Inmediately preceding 31.03.2023

i) Shares Alloted as Fully Pald up without Paymen! being Received in Cash il il
iiy Shares Alloted as Fully Paid up by way of Bonus Shares il il
i) Shares Brought Back il il

2.4 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares which is issued having a par value of Rs.10/- per share, Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion Lo their shareholding. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in case of interim
dividend. The company pays dividends in Indian rupees, when declared.
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2.5 Shares held by Promoters
Srno  Promoter name As At 31.03.2023 As At 31.03.2022 % of change during the year
Noof shares % of total shares No of shares % of total shares
1 KCMAMMEN 1,867 0.300 1.867 0.300 -
2  MAMMEN EAPEN 1171 0.180 1171 0.180 -
3 PHILIP MATHEW 230 0.040 230 0.040 -
4 ASHOK KURIYAN 1,981 0.320 1,881 0.320 -
5 JACOB MATHEW 622 0:100 622 0.100 -
& ROY MAMMEN 3,160 0.510 3,160 0.510 -
7 MAMMEN PHILIP 4,962 0.800 4,962 0.800 .
B MAMMEN MATHEW 1,120 0.182 1,120 0.182 -
9  SUSY THOMAS 1,504 0.244 1.504 0.244 -
10 MRS SARA LUKOSE 1,494 0.242 1,484 0.242 -
11 TARA JOSEFPH 5,650 0.8916 5.650 0.816 -
12 ANNAMMA PHILIP 9,733 1.578 9,733 1.578 -
13 SARASU JACOB 4,499 0.729 4,499 0.729 .
14 OMAMA MAMMEN B20 0.133 820 0.133 -
15 RACHEL MAMMEN 4 338 0.703 4,338 0.703 -
16 KK MAMMEN MAPPILLAI 4,708 0.763 4,708 0.763 -
17 MAMMEMN MATHEW a7z 0.0&(0 372 0.060 -
18 AMIT MATHEW 1,458 0.236 1458 0.236 -
19 ANNU KURIEN 1,555 0.252 1,655 0.252 -
20 MARY KURIEN 1,133 0.184 1,133 0.184 -
21 PREMA MAMMEN MATHEW 1,112 0.180 1,112 0,180 -
22 KIRAN KURIYAN 15,557 2822 15,5657 2.522 -
23 REENU ZACHARIAH 3,850 0.640 3,950 0.640 -
24 ROHAN KURIYAN 24176 3920 24178 3.820 -
25 BEEBI MAMMEMN 334 0.054 334 0.054 =
26 HARSHA MATHEW 1,680 0.274 1,680 0.274 -
27 RIYAD MATHEW 1,527 0.248 1.627 0.248 -
28 JACOB MAMMEN 1,834 0.297 1.834 0.297 -
29 PETER PHILIP 374 0.061 ar4 0.061 .
30 GEETHA MAMMEN MAPPILLAI 9,208 1.493 9,208 1.493 -
31 KZKURIYAN 2,600 0.405 2,500 0.405 -
32 REENU ZACHARIAH 2,993 0.485 2,993 0.485 .
33 KZJOHN 2,002 0.325 2,002 0.325 -
34 SARA KURIYAN 11,081 1.797 11,081 1.797 -
35 SHREYA JOSEPH 500 0.081 500 0.081 -
36 BINAMATHEW 834 0.135 834 0.135 -
37 MIKHIL KURIEN 500 0.081 500 0,081 -
38 ZACHARIAH KURIYAN 3,028 0.491 3.028 0.491 -
Total 1.35 575 22 1,35 575 232
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RE. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31032022
Particulars T 4
NOTE -3
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve:
As per last Balance Sheet 1,21,082 1,21,082
Share Premium Account ;
As per last Balance Sheat 7,425 7425
General Reserve:
As per last Balance Sheel 28,938 28938
Less; Debit Balance in Profit & Loss Accaunt:
As per last Balance Shest 73,354 65,530
Add: Loss for the year 13.452 7,624
—_— 86,806 73,354
(57,868) (44,416)
70,639 84,081
NOTE 4 As At 31.03.2023 As At 31.03.2022
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
aj From others 61,258 62 684
(Unsecured)
61,258 62,684
NOTE &
SHORT - TERM BORROWINGS
a) Loan repayable on demand
{i} From Banks (Secured)
The Federal bank Limited 16,725 8,233
Against Hypothecation of Whale of the
moveable assets of the Company
(collaterally secured by fitle
desds of M5 Estale.and Yelamadlu Estale ) 16,725 9,263
MNOTE 6
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables:
Due lo MSME - -
Due to other 1,542 1,497
1,542 1,497
Note 6.1
Trade Payables - Aging Schedule Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan 1 year 1.2 year 2- 3 year Mare than 3 years Total

i Lindisputed Dues-MSME -
(i Undisputed Duss-Others 169 512 151 710 1,642
(iiiy  Disputed Dues -MSME

(iv]  Disputed Dues - others -

Total 169 512 151 710 1,542
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Rs. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Particulars T T
NOTE -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{From Others: | unsecured )
a) Unpaid dividends 1 34
b Other Creditors
i} Creditors for Expenses 8,876 1,637
i) GST 246 (2
iii) Staff & Warkers PF Payable 138 709
iv) MM Housing 2,504
11,765 13,151
NOTE 8
SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS
a) Provision for employes benefits
Bonus to employess 2,813 3,429
Others 800
3,713 3129
NOTE 9
Poperty, Plant and Equipment
GROSSHLOCK DEPRECIATION METELOCK
BAETICLLARS AE AT ADGITECNSS DEDUCTIONSS  ASAT UPTQ FORTHE  WITHDRAWN AB AT ASAT AS AT
01.04 2022 TRANSFER TRANSFER 31032023 01042022 YEAR! TRAMSFERS 31032002 31.3.2023 31 32022
T T ¥ I T TRANSFERS ¥ ¥
Progerty (Fraahold) 2 B61 . - 2 461 - = - 2 661 2 861
Development to Plantation d484 044 BEE S22 . - . G2 3464
Buiidings (mcl, Rneds & Brdggs) 68 855 - - (8,955 46,671 1417 . 48,086 20, BET aeotd
Piant & Machinery 108574 1223 - 1,08,787 B1,182 a7 - 24,560 18217 17,391
Furnilure & Fittings ate. 12467 - 12,467 12377 16 12,583 4 an
|Matar Vehicles 154009 - 458 14,931 16,182 117 435 14,674 il 217
Tractors & Trailors 4,544 - - 4,344 4,544 - 4,344 o ]
Tatal 216074 4267 1,344 Z.18.997 1,68, 767 4,947 435 174,278 44,718 46,307
Pravious Year Figures 214,504 2837 1,267 216,074 1,64 427 5340 - 168,767 46,307 50078
NOTE 10
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Mon Current Investments in Equity Instruments
QUOTED (At Cost)
a) 67,850 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of
Rs.2/- each in M.M.Rubber Co.Lid. 136
136 136
(Market value of Quoted Investments: Rs. 6,717 thousands
{ Rs.3579 thousands)
UNQUOTED (At Cost)
a) 4,527 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
gach in Badra Estates and Industries Lid. 100 100
b} 40,020 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~
each in Integrated Finance Co. Lid, 462 462
c) 532 Fully paid-up Equilty Shares of
Rs.2/- each in Annaparai Estates Ltd. 5 5
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Particulars T T
d} 4,290,970 Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~
each of Balanoor Printers Ltd. .2 Subsidiary Company 4910
g} 999 960 Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-
each of Indo Bloom Lid. 10,000
f) 20,000 Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
of Mammen Mappillal Investments lid. 200
g) 50,000 Fully Pald up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~
each of M.M.Research Co.Pvt.Ltd. 500
h)  50,Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs.100/-
each of Young India Group Estate Co-operative
Consumer Stores Lid. 5
i) ASK Investments PMS Pool Account 366
16,548
16,684 16,684
NOTE 11
LONG - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Other loans and advances:
{ Un secured, considered good)
Due from firm/company in which
Director is interested:
Inde Bloom Lid. 14,273 14,274
Others _ 280
14,273 14 564
NOTE 12 I -
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{ Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits 1,851 1,858
Mon-Current Stock-in-Trade:
Palm & Other Mursery Plants 3135 3,135
Teak Plantation under -cultivation 17,982 17,428
Othar loans and advances ___370 ——
23,338 22523
NOTE 13
INVENTORIES
Stores and Spare Parts (Al cosl) 5215 4,283
(As valued and certified by the Management)
5,215 4283
Stock-in-Trade
(At cost or market value/average realised price, whichever is lowar)
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Current Stock-in-Trade:
Tea 3,562 5,208
Coffes 45,249 49.515
Rubber 823 816
Pepper 2,456 2218
Areca 2,8M 3,653
54,961 61.411
60,176 65,694
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in thuusands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31032022
Particulars T 4
NOTE 14
Trade Receivables (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a perind  exceading six manths: 855 1.483
Other Culstandings - 1,173
Total 855 2,656
Nota 14.1
Trade Receivables - Aging ScheduleDQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & months T-Zyear Z-Jyear Wore
& months -1 year than 3 yr. Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered good . - 517 338 . 855
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered doubtful . . - ? . -
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtiul - - - - - -
Unbilled Trade Recelvables 5 = = 2 =8 B
Total 0 0 517 338 0 855
NOTE 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash on hand 132 51
Balance with Banks:
Balance in Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks aa7 T23
Balance in EEFC account with Scheduled Bank (LSS Nil )
Other Bank Balances:
Balance in current Account with a Schedule
Bank representing Unclaimed Dividends 1 a4
Balance in Fixed Deposit Account with a
Scheduled Bank (held as Security with Sales Tax Department) 3 3
Balance in Fixed Daposit Account with a
Schedule Bank { held as Security for issuing Bank Gaurantes) 1,238 1,186
Total
2,3M 1,997
NOTE 16
Short term loans and Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Officers and staff loans:
To Staff
272 710
Others Advances - -
Due from firms/Companies in which Directors are interested 228
Due from others 6,879 5,250
Advances for taxes 2,016 3,588
9,385 9,548
NOTE 17
Revaenua from operations
i} Sale of Manufactured Produce;
Tea 38,271 33,261
Coffee 71,626 67.850
Rubber 3,604 4,424
Areca 9,725 8,535
iij Other Produce:
Pepper 8,162 9,033
Timber 7,623 T.276
Coconut 25 70
Palm & Other Mursery Planis 527 423
Othars 378 __. BBD
1,39,941 1.31.5621
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ra. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Particulars T T
NOTE 18
Other Income
a) Interest Income
i} From Subsidiary Company -
i) Fram a company n which director is interested
iiiy Frorm Banks { On Fixed Deposits ) 282
Iv) From Others | On Investments | 47
329 255
b) Dividend Income from Investments;
i) From Subsidiary Company -
i} From Others 1 1 0
¢} Curring charges received | Tax deducted at source Rs./- ) 1,427 1779
d) Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets(MNet) 27
£) Foreign exchange fiuatuation Ta2 267
) Miscellansous Receipt 1,111 679
[ Including Duty drawback Rs.Nil ) _ _
3,627 2,980
NOTE 19
Cost of Materials Consumed:
Cost of Materials Consumed:
Teak plantation - cultivation expenses 554 71
Coffea curing charges 1,323 1.001
Consumption of storas and spare parts 15,412 14 552
Power and fuel 8814 7.ors
25,903 23,342
Purchases :
Coffae 2,114 4,818
Areca 71 126
Pepper 733 1,263
9,918 6,207
Changes in inventories of finished goods - -
work-in- progress and stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock:
Tea 5,208 5,082
Rubber 816 535
Coffee 49,515 49043
Other Produce: - -
Pepper 2,219 2.880
Areca 3,653 3.187
Palm and Gther Nursery Plants 3,135 3,135
Teak Plantation 17,429 16,718
81,875 B0.580
Closing Stock S
Tea 3,561 5,208
Rubber 823 B16
Coffes 45,249 49,515
Other Produce:
Pepper 2,456 2219
Areca 2,871 3.853
Paim & Other Nursery Plants 3,135 3,136
Teak Plantation 17.982 17.429
76,077 81,975
Increase 5,898 {1,385)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 80,895 80,164
Caontribution to Provident Fund
and Other Funds 4,944 4,651
Contribution to Approved Empoloyees’
Gratuity Trust 2,040 1.817
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 5,801 5600
93,680 _ 92232
Finance costs
Interest Paid:
Bank T36 126
Others 12
T36 138
Other expenses
Repairs and Maintenance:
Buildings 2072 2513
Roads and Bridges 370 338
Machinery 1.839 3.030
Office Equipments 832 -
4,913 5,881
Auditor's remuneration
Audit fee 176 170
Certification and other services
176
Administrative Expenses:

Insurance 714 11
FRates and Taxes 491 355
Travelliing and Conveyance 2,157 1,505
Lighting Charges 1,194 1,243
Vehicle Maintenance 1,634 2.776
Professional Charges 7o
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,954 2,116
Directors' Sitting Fees 65 as
Directors' Travelling Expenses
Sundry Debit Balances Written off
Rent G663 627
Selling And Distribution Expenseas
Commission on Sales an
Transpaort Charges 1,666 1,977 a12

15,938 16,451
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Rs,In Thousands)

Particulars 2022 ; 2023 2021 - 2022
20  Walue of Imports calculated on C.1LF basis by the Company NIL MIL
21 Expendilure in Foreign Currency during the year
Bank Charges NIL MIL
Foreign Travel 408 NIL
22 Consumption of Raw Matenals, Spare parts and Components consumed during the year
Raw materials {Green Leaf Tea)
Imported NIL NIL
Indigenous (100%) NIL MIL
Stores, Spare parts and Components
Imported NIL MIL
Indigenous (100%) 15,413 14,552
23 Earnings in Foralgn Currancy
a)Export of Goods on F.0O.B basis 35,228 11.056
24, Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency on account of dividends: NIL
25, Proposed Dividends: No Dividend is declared for the financial year 2022-2023, due to financial
losses.
26. Basic & Diluted earnings of Rs (21.81) pershare as on 31.3.2023 have been computed with Reference fo Loss
of Rs.1,3452 thousands
27. Contingencies and Commitments:
Contingent Liabilities: Nil
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital not provided for: Nil
Bank Guaranteas. NIl
28, Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt
A, case has been filed by the Government of Kerala for their re-possession of about 115.89 Hectares of
Company’s Property planted with Rubber & Coffee at Perinthalmanna, Kerala before the Hon'ble High Court of
Kerala & the same was challenged by the Company and the decision by the Hon'ble High Court of Kerala has
been pronounced and is against the Company and the Company has filed an Appeal before the Hon'ble
Supreme Court. Pending hearing and final disposal of the said case, no adjustments are made in the accounts
for the same.
29. Related Party Disclosures

(a) Associate: Indobloom Limited
(b) Subsidiary : Balanoor Printers Limited
(c) KeyManagementPersonnel

(i) Mr. Ashok Kandathil Kuriyan Managing Director
(i) Mr. Mammen Eapen Director
(d) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
() Mr.K.K.Mammen Mappillal Brother of Managing Director
{ii) Mrs, Omana Mammen Wife of a Directar
(i} Mrs. Annamma Mammen Wife of a Directar
{iv) Mr. Rohan Kuriyan Son of Managing Director

(e}

The Member of Key management in common: MM Housing Private Limited
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{Re.In Thousands)

ii. Redated parties have been identified based on the information available with the Managemant 2022 — 2023 2021 —.2022
b 1
{a) Aczociate '
{i) Unsecured Loan 14,273 14273
{b) Key Management Personnal 1
(i) Remuneration 2,802 2,551
(i} Other Expanses 333 36
{c ) Relatvas of Key Management Personnel |
(I} Remunearation B28 192
{ii} Salariez & allowances 18 18
{iii) Professional fees 240 240
{iv) RentPaid 663 GET
{v] Other Expanses a2 337
The Member of key managemant In comman |
i) Purchases 5,104 4,433

ii.The related parties have been identified based on the information available with the Management,

30. Preceding Years'figures have beenreclassified, regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary,

31. The Company has not provided for deferred tax liability, in accordance with AS 22 {Accounting of Taxes on
Income), in view of continuing carry forward losses.

32. Disclosure relating to Micro, Small Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006

The company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filled by the suppliers with the notified
authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008) claiming their status as Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises and consequently the amount paid/payable to these parties has been
considerad Nil

33. Disclosure as per AS-15: Gratuity liability valuation is carried out by a professional Chartered Accountant and
certified by the Managemenl. Such liability is discharged by way of contribution to a Trust.

34. Segment Reporting: The Company's predominant primary Segment Operations relate to growing and
manufacture of Tea, Coffee, Rubber and other Agricultural produce. Fixed Assets used in the Company's
business or liabilities contracted, have not been identified to any of the reportable Segments, as such Assets &
Liabilities to each segment s not practically allocable.

[Fs.In Thousands)

PRIMARY SEGMENT INFORMATION:

Particulars Tea Coffea Rubber Other Produce Misc. receipis Total
Revenues 38271 71626 ae0d 26440 11N 141052
Identifiable Operating Expenses (89160) (53132) (5067) (13109) - (140488)
Purchases - {8114) - (804) - (2918)
Increase(+y fllm:rﬂas&(-} in stocks (1647) [4266) [ ] (5898)
Segmental Operating ProfivLoss (32538) 5114 (1448) 125627 1N (15232)
Unallowable Expenses
Interest & Finance Charges (T36)
Un-allocable Income
Others 2518 2516

[ TGTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAXES
TAXES
'NET LOSS AFTER TAXES (13452)

35.  Impairment in assets AS 28: During the year, the Company has ascertained that, there Is no impairment to the
Fixed Assets after considering facts obtained through internal and external sources.

36. The Company does not require to make expanditure under CSR activities as specified under Section 135 of The
Companies Act, 2013 in view of losses Inthe preceding Three Financial Years.

37 The Company has a subsidiary Company in the year namely M/S. Balanoor Printers Lid and Associated
company namely M/s Indo Bloom Limited,
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45.
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48,
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51.

52.

53.

55,
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57.

58.

Reconciliation of Accounts: Sundry Debtors, Creditors and Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation and are stated at the book balance thereof,

Other Long Term Liabilities includes the loan amaount from MM Housing Private Limited.
All Investments are held in Physical format and itis in the process of Demating.
AllAmounts are in Indian rupees and the figures have been rounded off ta the nearast thousand.

The company does not hold any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the
company for holding the benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The company is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The company does not have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the company's act
2013 or section 560 of the companies act, 1956,

The Company has taken the Cash credit facility against the hypothecation of movable assets of the company
collaterally secured by title deeds of M. S and Yelamadiu Estates,

{a) The Company is not required o file quarterly returns or statements with the bank.
Undisclosed Income-Nil

Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whather recorded in writing or otherwisa, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
ofthe Ultimate Baneficianes;

There are no charges and satisfaction yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
pariodason  31.03.2023.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of the Section 2 of the
Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

There are no approved schemes or arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Autharity in
terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Acl, 2013

The Company has not revalued any of the immovable properties during the year.
The Company neither holds norhas revalued intangibles during the year.

Capital Work in Progress: Nil

Intangible assets under development: Nil

All the Tille deeds of Immovable properly are held in the name of the company

The Company has not traded or invested in any Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

Accounting software with Audit Trail: Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies{Accounts) Rules 2014 for
maintaining books of account using  accounting software which has feature of recording Audit Trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April1,2023.

Financial Ratios
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R
si Reasons
Nt" Ratios Numerator | Denominator F.Y 2022-23 |F.Y 2021-22 | % change (If % change

> 25%)
1 | (a) Current ratio Current Assets| Current 2.157 2956 27.03%
Liabilitie=
2 |(b) Debt-Equity ratio | Total Debt Shareholder's A A A
Equity
3 |[c) Debt Service EBITDA + Interest &
Coverage ratio Other Non- Lease
Cash llems Paymeanis +
Principal
repayments MA MA MNA
4 | (d) Return an MNPAT Shareholder's As the loss has
equity ratio Equity {-0.175) | (-0.0BE7) | 101.B45% (increased in
the current
year compared
to previous
financial year
the is
significant
vanance in
ratios
5 |(e) Inventory Cost of goods | Average
turnaver ratio sold Ivventary
(Opening +
Closing
balance / 2) 2.151 1.840 16.902%
6 |f) Trade Receivables | Revenue from | Average R
turnover ratio operations Accounts Reduction in
Receivable sales and
(Opening + average
Closing realisalion
balance / 2} 90.284 | 56.649 59.374% | rate
7 |lg) Trade payables | Purchases of | Average :Emﬁmﬁ ",f:sr
turnover ratio Goods and Trade utiized overdratt to
other services | Payable 22.144 21.859 1,3049% |ray off trade
payables, resufling
in  significant
WA ca
& |(h) Net capital Revenue from | Averags Working As the loss has
turnover ratio operations Capital (Working incraased in the
capital= current current year
Assets - current ;":ﬁﬁ:ﬂ L
liabilities) 3.584 2420 48.10% financial year the
iz significant
variance in ratios
g | (i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue from As the loss has
(After Tax) operations -0.096 -0.059 62.712% | increased in the
current year
compared ta
preveous financial
year the is
significant

varance in ralios

ar



si o Reasons
: F.Y 2021-22 | F.Y 2020-21 (if %
No Ratios Numerator Denominator Change changes 25%
10 | {j) Return on Capital s the loss has
employed EBIT Capital increased in the
Employed (-0.175) | (-0.0867) | 101.845%, |current year
compared 1o
pravious fnancial
yaar the fs
significant
varance in ratios
11 | (k) Return on Income Cost of
investment generated | Investment
form the
investments Nil Nil - -

As per our Report of even date

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Req. Mo, 0053895)

MA Ravishankar
(Partner)
M.NO.: 023269

Place: Bangalora
Date : 01-08-2023

Zachariah Kurlyan

Director

DIN:DOO7B109

For and on behaif of the board

Ashok Kuriyan
Managing Director
DIN:00081374

Place :
Date

Boengalura
L 2808-2023
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"Sumagiri”, 1st Floor, 8th Main Road
Sector 6. H.8.R, Layout, Bangaluru - 560 102

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

1.01 We have audited the accompanying Consolidated
financial statements of BALANOOR PLAMTATIONS &
INDUSTRIES LIMITED, Bangalore {hereinafter referred
to as "the Parent Company"), and its subsidiary
BALANOOR PRINTERS LIMITED and Associate
enterprise INDO BLOOM LIMITED (the parent and its
subsidiary and associate together referred as "the
Group®,) which comprise the Consclidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated
Statements of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as
“the Consclidated Financial Statements") and other
explanatory information, wherein the transactions of
contra nature between the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary Enterprise under certain Assets & Liabilities
and Profit & Loss have been deleted for the purpose of
consolidation as per "line to line method” suggested by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

1.02 In gur opinion and to the best of our infarmation and
according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on
separate financial statements of the subsidiary referred
to below in the Other Matter section below, the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Companies Acl, 2013 ("the Act") read with rules as
amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the Consolidated State of Affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2023 and its loss and Cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

2.01 We conducted our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Caompanies Acl, 2013, Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the ICAl together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Rules theraunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance wilh these requirements and ICAl's Code of

Ethics. We believe that the audil evidence wa have
abizined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
stalements.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

3.01 The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Board's Report including Annexures to the Board's
Report and other Shareholder's information but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

3.02 QOur opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

3.03 In connection with our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
athar information, compare with the financial statements
of subsidiary and associate audited by other auditors, o
the exlent it relates to these entities and  in deing sa,
place reliance on the work of other auditors and consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other
information so far as it relates to the subsidiary and
associate is traced from their financial statements
audited by the other auditors,

3.04 If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatemeant of this
ather information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

4.01 The Parent's Board of Directors is respansible for
the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flowsin accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act.  This responsibility of
respective Board of Directors of the Group companies,
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularilies, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparalion and presentation of the Consclidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

4.02 In preparing the Consolidated financial statements,
respective Board of Directors of the Group companies is
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liguidate or lo cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so, Those Board of Directors' are
also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
repaorting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

5.01 Owr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecl a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expecied to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial
statements.

5.02 As part of an audil in accordance with the SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment
resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override ofinternal control

. Obtain an understanding of intemal financial
control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Parent has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounling estimales and related disclosures
made by the management

Conclude an the appropriateness of
management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability of the
Group and its subsidiary and associate

To continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company lo cease to
continue as a going concern:

Evaluate the overall presentation, struclure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain  sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the nancial infarmation of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities or business activities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities or business activities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such ather auditors
ramain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of
any idenlified misstatements in the Consolidated
financial statements
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«  We communicate with those charged with
governance of the Parent and its subsidiary and
associate included in the Consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies. in internal control that we. identify
during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

Other Matters:

The Consolidated Financial Statement include financial
statement of subsidiary enterprise which is audited by
other auditor and whose financial stalements reflect total
assels of Rs. 35511 thousand and total outside liabilities
of Rs. 472 thousands as at March 31, 2023, total
revenues of Rs. 1777 thousands, as considerad in the
statement. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on
the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it
relales to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in sa far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports
of the other auditor. Our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements above, and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other
auditor,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6.01 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specifiedin paragraphs 3 (xxi) of the Order.

6.02 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit and on the consideration of the reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiary
and associate incorporated in India, referred in the Other
Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(g}  We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statemeants;

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our
examinalion of those books and the reports of the
other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated
financial stalemenls comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,as amended from time to time;

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Parent as on
31stMarch, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incarporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies is disqualified as on 31sl
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statement and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B", which is based on the auditors'
reports of the Parent and subsidiary company
incorporated in India

In Our Opinion and best of our information and
according lo the explanation given lo us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197(16) of the companies
act2013.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
infarmation and according to the explanations
givento us:

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements have
disclosed the impact of pending litigations in
its financial position of the Company in Mote
26 & 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

b} The Group did not have any long term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses;
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c) There has been no delay in transferring Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
amounts, required to be transferred, to the any guarantee, security or the like on bahalf

Investor Education and Protection Fund by ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary and (i)
associate incorparated in India during the year

ended March 31, 2023

Based on such audit procedures, we have
considered reasonable and appropriale in
the circumstance and performed by us and

(d) (i) The respective management of the holding based on the certificate from the
company and its subsidiary and associate management of the Holding and subsidiary
have represented to us that in Note No 40, to and associate; nothing has come to our
the best of its knowledge and belief, otherthan notice that has caused us to believe that the
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no representations under sub clause (i) and (i)
funds have been advanced or loaned or mentioned above contain any material
invested (either from borrowed funds or share misstatemant;
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) (e} The Holding Company has not declared any

by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
antity(ias), including foreign entities
("intermediaries™}, with the understanding,
whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or

dividend in last year which has been paid in current year.
Further, na dividend has been declared in current year,
Aceardingly, the provision of section 123 of the Act is not
applicable to the company.

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or i) Provisa to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
entities identified in any manner whatsoever (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate books of account using accounting software
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, which has a fealure of recording audit trail
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
Beneficiaries; and its associates, which are the companies

- . incorporated in India from Financial Year
(i) The respective management of the holding beginning April 1, 2023, and accordingly,

company and its subsidiary and associate : :
have represented to us thatin MNoteNo 41, lo ;iﬂ%?ngnﬁniﬁﬁiiﬂ? ;ILEEE}E ﬂfzé:&m.?sa n;enst
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than : ; ; i

s e TR e AL o e S AR, 50 applicable for the financial year 2022-2023
furds have baen raceived by the Company for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan
from any person{s) or entity(ies), including >

foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the Chartered Accountants
understanding, whether recorded in writing or FRN: 0053835
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,

directly or indirectly, lend ar invesl in other MA R‘-’M‘EF',";?:;;
persons or enfilies identified in any manner Place: Bangalore M.NO.: 023269
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Date: 01.09.2023 UDIN: 230232698 GYKGY 7398

Annexure "A'
To the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremeants’ section of our report
of even date)

Ag required by the clause 3(xxi) of CARO 2020, we report that no adverse comment or qualification have bean given by

the auditors of the Holding and Subsidiary and associate for the financial year ended March 31,2023, and accordingly,
no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0053895

(MA Ravishankar)

FPartner

Place: Bengaluru M.NO { UEBZEEI
Date: 01-09-2023 UDIN: 23023269BGYKGY 7308
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 7.02(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' Section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”)

1.01 We have audited the Intermal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statemenis of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS &
INDUSTRIES LIMITED, Bangalore (hereinafter referred
lo as "lhe Parenl Company"), and ils subsidiary
BALANCOR PRINTERS LIMITED and Associate
enterprise INDO BLOOM LIMITED (the parent and its
subsidiary and Associate together referred as "the
Group",) as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

2.01The respective Board of Directors' of the Parent and
its subsidiary and associale are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria esiablished by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibllities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safequarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Acl, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

3.01 Our responsibility is to express an opinian on the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) ofthe Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Nole
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial

controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

3.02 Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence, about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included,
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk.

3.03 The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error

3.04 We believe that the audit evidence we have
oblained and the audil evidence oblained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to
in the Other Matlers paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company and its subsidiary and associate.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

4.01 A Company's Internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes In accordance with generally accepled
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control over financial reporiing includes those policies
and procedures that;

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as hecessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and thal
receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made anly in accordance with
authorizations of the Management and Directors'
ofthe Company; and
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{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
Financial Statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

5.01 Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management,
overide of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be delected. Alsg,
projections aof any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act
on the adequacy and operaling effecliveness of the
intermal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements insofaras it relates lo
one subsidiary company, which is company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
report of the auditor of such company incorporated in
India.

Opinion

6.01 In our opinion, to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based an
the consideration of other auditors referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph above, the Parent, and its subsidiary
companies, have, in all material respects, an adequate
intermal financial controls system with reference fo
consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31st March,
2023.based on the criteria for internal control over
financial reporting established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Mate on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of Indja,

for Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0053895

(MA Ravishankar)

Partner

M. No. 023269

UDIN: 23023269BGYKGZ4337

Place: Bangalore
Date: 01.08.2023




BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN NO. : UT0102KA1974PLC002641

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

[Rs.In Thausands)

Note As al 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022
Particulars Ma. k4 ¥F
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
{a) Share Capital 2 6,168 6,168
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 90,764 1,03,082
(2] Minonly Interast 5 | 2 2
Sub Total (A) 86,934 1,08,252
Share Application Money Pending Allotment
{2) Mon-Current Lisbilities
{2)Long Term Borrowings
{b)Deferred Tax Liabilities
{c) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 61,259 62 684
{dlLang Term Provisions
Sub Total (B) ~Biz58 — 665
{3) Current Ligbilties
{a) Shorl-Tarm Borrowings 5 16,724 9253
{b) Trade Payables 4
-Total outstanding dues of creddors of micro and small enlerprises
-Tota oulstanding dues of credilors sther than mizro and small entarprises 1,542 1,497
{e) Other Current Liabilities T 12,220 13,547
{d) Short=-Tarm Provisions 8 - 3,147
Sub Total { C) T 34217 27 444
Tatal {A+B+C) 192411 1.99,380
Il Assets - -
{1) Non-Cument Assets
{a) Properiy, Plant and Equipments & Intangible assets g 44718 46,307
(b} Mon-Current Investmants 10 1,774 1,774
o} Deferrad Tax Assels =
(d) Long Term Loans and Advanoes i 14,274 14,564
(&) Othar Non-Current Assals 12 23,338 22523
Sub Total (D) T 4,104 " 65168
{2) Current Assels
{a) Current Investmenits -
{b) Iinventories 13 60,174 65,604
{C} Trade Receivables 14 BSS 2,656
{d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 36,701 35,306
{e] Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 10,058 10,556
{f) Other Current Assasts 517 =
Sub Total (E) 1,08,306 1,144,212
Total (D+E) 1,592,410 1,899,380
Significant Accounting Policies
The Motes refarmmed to above form an Integral part of the: Balance Sheset
As per our Audit Report of Even date
E?If :ﬁnﬂ- MADT: E.ItEUDHAH & SRINIVASAN Far and an behall of the board
artered Accountants
{Firm Reg. No. 0053885)
MA Ravishankar Zachariah Kuriyan Ashn!c Kuriyan
(Partner) Managing Director
M.NO.- 023269 DIN:00078109 DIN:00081374
Placa: Bangalore Placa : Bangaluru
Date : 01-09-2023 Data ¢ 28-DB-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN : UT0102KA1974PLCO002641
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

fris | Tabiisipicel).

P:df:“ Year ended 31.03.2023  Yearended 31.03.2022

Particulars E 4 ¥
I Revenue from Operations 17 1,39,940 131,521
il Other Income 18 5404 4,536
I, Total Income {111} 1,45,345 1,36,057
V. Expenses: 19
Cost of Materials Consumed 25,905 23,342
Furchases 9,918 6.207
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Waork-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 5,898 {1.385)
Employee Benefits Expanse 83,680 02,232
Finance Costs Tar 147
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 4,947 5,240
ther Expsenses 16,044 16,551
{Increase) Decrease in BPIL share in Indo Bloom Ltd Natworth - -
Total Expenses IV 1,57.128 142434
W Profit Before Exceplional and Extraordinary ltems and Tax  { Il-IV ) {11,785) (6.377)
WI. Exceptional ltems - -
Wil Profit Before Extraordinary ltems and Tax V=V {11, 785) {6,377
WINl.  Extraordinary [tems - -
IX. Profit Before Tax [ W=V ) (11,785) (6,377}
X. Tax Expense;
(1) Current Tax 434 a6
12) Previous Year Tax 98 -
- 532 T

Xl.  Profit{Loss) From The Period From Continuing Operations (1x-X) 12,317) {6,753)
Xll.  Profit{Loss) From Discontinuing Operations - -
X, Tax Expense of Discontinuing Operations - -
XV, Profit{Loss) from Discontinuing Operations X+ ) - -
XV, Profit(Loss) for the Pariod ( KI+XIV ) (12,317) _{6.753)
XV1. Eaming per Equity Share:

(1) Basic (19.97) {10.95)

(2] Diluted {19.97) {10.95)

Significant AccopaAnting Policies
The Motes refarred o above form an Infegral pan of the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

As per our Audit Report of Even date

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN Far and on behall of the board
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Reg. No. 0053885)

Zachariah Kuriyan Ashok Kuriyan
:"lim\:;aha“kar Director Managing Director
M.NO.- 023269 DiIN:00078109 DIN:00081374
Placa: Bangalore Placa : Bangaluru
Date : (N-09-2023 Date : 28-08-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
CIN : UT0102KA1974PLC002641
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2023

{R=s.In Thousands)

Year ended " Year anded
Particulars 31.0%.2023 31_05%_2[:22
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit{loss) bafore Tax (11,785) (6,377
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4947 5,340
Interest paid 737 147
5,684
Operating Profit before Working capital changes (6,101) (B90)
Adjusiments for:
Inventarles 5518 (491)
Trade Retzivables 1,801 (669)
Long Term Loans & Advances 281 ()
Short Term Loans & Advances {21} 229
Other Long Term Liabilities {1.426) 1.792
Othar non - currant assats (B15) (710
Trada Payables 45 271
Hher Current Liabilities (1,327) (952)
Short Term Provisions B4 162)
4,640 (592)
Cash generated from Operations (1.451) (1.482)
Tax Paid / Provision for Tax 532 are
Cash flow betore Prior-Period items (1,983) (1.858)
Prior Period items - -
Met Cash from Operating Activities - Total A (1,983) (1.858)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
Purchase of Fixed assats including Capital Work-in-progress (3,388) {1,569)
Increase [ Decraase ) in Non - current Investments
Met Cash fromd(Used in) Investing Activities - Total B (3,358) {1,569)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES A S =
Increase { (Decrease) in Long Tearm borrowings -
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term borrowings TATZ 1.947
Interest Paid (736) (147)
Net Cash from / (Used in) Financing Activities - Total C _ BT36 1,801
Met Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents - A+B+C - 1,385 (1.626)
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 35,306 T 36937
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 36,701 35,306
1,395 1,626
Reconciliattion of Cash and Cashequivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Eguivalants 35,459 34,084
Add: Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equlvalents
{ Asdefined in AS 2 Cash Flow Statements ) - Unpald Dividend Accoun 1 14
Scheduled Bank {held as Security with Sales Tax Depariment) 3 3
Sahedule Bank { held as Security for issuing Bank Gaurantea) 1,238 1,185
Cash and cash equivalenis as per Balance Sheat Refar Nofa No. 15 ) 36,701 35,306

Significant Accounting Policies

The Motes referred lo above form an Integral part of the Slatement of Profit & Loss Account
A5 par our Audit Reportof Even date
For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN For and on behall of the board

Chartered Accountants
{Firm Reg. No. 0053885)

Zachariah Kuriyan Ashok Kuriyan
:"lim\:;aha“kar Director Managing Director
M.NO.- 023269 DiIN:00078109 DIN:00081374
Placa: Bangalore Placa : Bangaluru
Date : (N-09-2023 Date : 28-08-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED, BENGALURU
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. Basis of Accounting and preparation of
Financial Statements: The Cansolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS 21 & AS 23) on
Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The
CFS comprises of the Financial Statements of
Balanoor Plantations & Industres Limited (Holding
Company), it's Subsidiary, Balanoor Printers Ltd.
and its Associale Indo Bloom Limited,

ll. Consolidation:

Investment in Associate Companies has been
accounted under the equity method as per
Accounting Standard (AS) 23 - "Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements”,

Investments in Subsidiary Companies has been
accounted as per Accounting Standard (AS) 21 -
"Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis under the histarical cost
convention on accrual basis in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of
The Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 shall continue

toapply.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with the Generally
accepted accounting principles require the
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities as at the Balance sheet date and the
results of operations during the reporting period.
The actual results could differ from these estimates.
Any revision to such accounting estimates is
recagnized in the accounting period in which such
revision takes place.

IV. Property, Plant and Equipment: Property plant and
equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, including
any attributable cost for bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

a. In respect of Land and Development, expenditure
incurred up to bearing is capitalized.

Expenditure on new planting: Expenditura on new
planting including upkeep & maintenance expenses
on immature plants are capitalized under
"Development ta Property”

The replanting expenses spent by the Company
during the year is charged off as expenses”,

Further "Cooly/Labour lines" which are of tempaorary in
nature are treated as "purely temporary” structures and
dealt with accordingly.

Depreciation on Tangible Assels is provided on the cosl
of an asset or other substituted cost less its estimated
residual value on the SLM method, over the useful life of
the assets as prescribed under Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013,

For addition to assets during the course of the year,
depreciation/ amortization is being charged on a
proportionate basis from the date of put to use. For
deletion/sale of assets during the course of the year,
depreciation/ amortization is being charged on a
proportionate basis till the date of cessation of use/sale.

The Subsidiary Company has no Fixed Assets.

V1. Impairment of Assets: The Holding Company
carries out internal review tests for Impairment
annually, for its assets for any possible

impairment.

Vil.  Nursery: Expenditure on Nursery is accumulated
and charged to expenses account in the year of

planting.

Investments: Investments are classified as long
term investments and current investments.
Current investments are stated at lower of cost
and fair value. Long term investments are usually
carried at cost and provision for diminution is
made ta recognise a decline, other than
temporary separately for each individual long term
investments.

Wiil.

Inventories:

Stores & Spare parts: Stock of stores and
Spares are wvalued at cost using Weighted
Average cost method.

Stock in trade: (at cost or market or average
realized price. whicheveris lower) Coffee, Areca &
Pepper stocks are valued at cost incurred at
Estates, while Tea, Rubber and other stocks are
valued at "Total cost” wherever applicable.

b The Closing stock of Palm & other nursery plants
have been wvalued at cost or market value
whichever is lowaer, after taking into account cost
of plants which have withered or removed during
the year.

C. Balanoor Printers Ltd does not have stock of
Paper, Spares and Work in progress during the
year norin the previous yaar.

X. Revenue Recognition: Revenue from sale of
goods is recognized when all the significant rigks
and rewards of ownership in the goods are
transferred to the buyer which are generally on

48



Xl

Xl

.

delivery of goods. The Company retains no
effective control of the goods transferred to a
degree usually associated with ownership and no
significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of the consideration that will be derived
from the sale of goods. Sales are recognized net
of trade discounts, rebates, sales taxes and
excise duties,

Sale of old Rubber Trees/Shade lrees s recorded
on receipt basis.

Income from Investments: Dividends received
on investments are accounted for as and when
received. Interest income s recognized on
accrual basis.

Government Grants/Subsidies: All subsidies
received are accounted on cash basis and treated
as revenue in lhe year of receipl, if not adjusted
earlier,

Employee Benefits (AS-15):
Short term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss,
on accrual basis.

Long term Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit plan.

The Company Liabilities for the Gratuily are
determined as atthe end of  the financial year by
the management covering the employees who
completed 5 years of service. The Company
discharges its liability towards Gratuity fund by
making contribution to trust Excess/shortfall will
be recognized as incomefexpenses In statement
of profitand loss account.

The Company discharges its liability towards
Provident fund for staff employees by making
contribution to trust. Any shortfall in the annual
return on investment of the trust as compared to
the return fixed by the government under its EPFO
scheme is contributed by the company.

Defined contribution plan

XV,

AV,

AVI.

XVILL

The contribution under this schemea is recognized
as an expensesinthe statementof profitand loss

All the above long term liabilities are accounted on
accrual basis

Foreign Currency Transactions: Foreign
currency fransactions are recorded at rates of
exchange pravailing on the date of transaction.
Forelgn currency on hand at the close of the year
is valued al the rale of exchange prevailing on thal
date,

Taxes on Income: Income Tax expenses
comprise current tax and deferred tax charge.
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax
payable in respect of taxable income for the year
based onapplicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax assels are recognized only to the
extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty
that sufficient fulure laxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets
will be realized. Such assets are reviewed as at
each Balance sheelt date for reassessment.

Borrowing Cost: Borrowing cost attributable for
acquisition of assel is capilalized otherwise
charged off.

Cash and Cash equivalents:

Cash Includes cash on hand and balances with
banks. Cash Equivalents are short term, highly
liguid investments, having a maturity of three
manths or less from the date of its acquisition, that
are readlly convertible Into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of
changes in value:

50



-__l"r
BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED nﬁ;{g_

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in thowsands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Particulars T 4

NOTE 2

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

4,000, 11.5% Tax Free Cumulative

Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 400

8,860,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 9600 10000 10000

Issuead:

4,945 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

io the Vendors as fully paid-up 50

2,59,319 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

as Bonus Shares fully paid-up 2593

3,52,506 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

for cash3525 6168 6168

Subscribed, Called and Paid-up:

Equity Shares:

4 945 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

lo the Vendors as fully paid-up 50

259,313 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

as Bonus Shares fully paid-up 2583

3,52.506 Shares of Rs.10/- each issued

for cash and fully paid-up 3525 6168 6168

Total Lk JEHR

2.1 Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Shares As At 31.03.2023 As At 31.03.2022

Name of share holder MNo. of Shares  Percentage No. of Shares Percentage
Life Insurance Corporation of India 92082 14.93% 92082 14.93%
M.M. Corporation 33397 5.41% 33397 5.41%
M.M. Housing Private Limited. 55330 B.97% 55330 8.97%
Total 180809 180809

2.4 Terms/rights attached to equity shares: )

The Parent company has only one class of equity shares which is issued having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meegting, except in case of interim dividend. The company pays dividends in Indian rupeeas,
when declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.5 Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Srno Promoter name AsAt31.03.2023 % of change during the year
Mo of shares % of total shares No of shares %  of tolal shares
1 K C MAMMEN 1,867 0.300 1,867 0.300 -
2 MAMMEN EAPEN 1,171 0.190 1,171 0.180 E
3 PHILIP MATHEW 230 0.040 230 0.040 -
4 ASHOK KURIYAN 1,981 0.320 1,981 0.320 =
5 JACOB MATHEW B22 0.100 622 0.100 -
B ROY MAMMEN 3,160 0.510 3,160 0.510 =
7 MAMMEN PHILIP 4,862 0.800 4,962 0.800 -
a8 MAMMEMN MATHEW 1,120 0.182 1,120 0.182 .
2] SUSY THOMAS 1,504 0.244 1,504 0.244 -
10 MRE SARALUKOSE 1,494 0.242 1,494 0.242 -
11 TARA JOSEPH 5,650 0.916 5,650 0.916 R
12 ANNAMMA PHILIP 9,733 1.578 9,733 1.578 -
13 SARASU JACCB 4,499 0.729 4,499 0729 n
14 OMANA MAMMEN 820 0.133 820 0.133 -
15 RACHEL MAMMEN 4,338 0.703 4,338 0.703 -
16 KK MAMMEN MAPPILLAI 4708 0.763 4,708 0.763 -
17 MAMMEN MATHEW ar2 0.060 372 0.060 -
18 AMIT MATHEW 1,458 0.236 1,458 0.236 -
19 ANNU KURIEN 1,555 0.252 1,555 0.252 -
20 MARY KURIEN 1,133 0.184 1,133 0.184 =
21 PREMA MAMMEN MATHEW 1,12 0180 1,112 0.180 o
22  KIRAN KURIYAN 15,557 2.522 15,557 2.522 -
23 REENU ZACHARIAH 3,950 0.640 3,850 0.640 -
24 ROHAN KURIYAN 24176 3.920 24176 3.920 -
25 BEEBI MAMMEN 334 0.054 334 0.054 g
26 HARSHA MATHEW 1,680 0.274 1,690 0.274 -
27 RIYAD MATHEW 1,527 0.248 1,827 0.248 =
28  JACOB MAMMEN 1,834 0.297 1.834 0.297 -
29 PETER PHILIP 374 0.081 374 0.061 -
30 GEETHA MAMMEN MAPFILLAI 8.206 1.483 8,206 1.483 H
31 K ZKURIYAN 2,500 0.405 2,500 0.405 -
32 REENU ZACHARIAH 2,993 0.485 2,993 0.485 n
33 KZJOHN 2,002 0.325 2,002 0.325 -
34  SARA KURIYAN 11,081 1.797 11,081 1.797 =
35 SHREYA JOSEPH 500 0.081 500 0.081 -
36  BINAMATHEW 834 0.135 834 0.135 -
37  MIKHIL KURIEN o00 0.081 200 0.081 -
38 ZACHARIAH KURIYAN 3.028 0.4 3,028 0.491 -
Total 135575 22 1,35,5T5 22.00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ag al 31.03.2023

R=. in thousands

Az at 31.03.2021

Particulars T E 4
NOTE 3
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve:
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,21,082 1,21,082
Share Premium Account :
Balance al the beginning and al the end of the year 7,425 7.425
General Reserve:
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 28938 - 28,938
Balance in Profit & Loss Account :
Balance of Holding company (B6,807) - (54,361)
30,128
Add: Loss for the year -
(56,679) (54,361)
Add: Loss in associale company (10,000) (37.741) (18,670)
Less: Minarity Interest Share (2) (2)
Total 90,764 1.03,082
NOTE 3.1
MINORITY INTEREST
Share Capital 1 1
Reserves & Surplus 1 1
Total 2 2
NOTE 4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
a) From olhers 61,259 B2 684
(Unsecured)
61,259 62 B84
NOTE 5
SHORT - TERM BEORROWINGS FROM BANKS
SECURED:
a) Loan repayable on demand:
{I) From Banks { Secured )
The Federal Bank Limited 16,724 9,253
Against Hypothecation of Whale of the
movable assets of the Company
{collaterally secured by litle
deeds of M.S.Estate and Yelamadiu Estate )
16,724 9,253
NOTE 6
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables
Due to MSME - -
Due to Others 1,542 1,497
1,542 1,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in thousands

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

7

Az at 31.03.2022

F
%

Trade Payables - Aging Schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2- 3 year More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Duas-MSME -
[y Undisputed Dues -MSME - - - - -
(i) Undisputed- Dues Others 169 512 151 710 1,542
(i} Disputed Dues -MSME - - - - -
(i) ~ Disputed Dues - others - - - - -
Total 169 512 151 710 1,542
NOTE 7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
From Others: { Unsecured )
a) Unpaid dividands 1 34
b) Other Creditors
iy Creditors for Expenses 45 96
iy GST 613
iy Staff & Workers PF Payable 9 77
iv) M M Housing 2,505 9
(v) TDS Payments 38 110
{vi) QOutput GST 246 7T
(c) Other Liabilities
Craditors For Quistanding Expenses 4199 3,783
Balanoor Employees Gratuity Trust 712 2,597
Estate ather creditors 3.920 3.958
LIC Premium Payable - 43
Others - 272
Keral estate -staff and wages payable - 78
d) Advance Received from the customers -
(i) Rubber Estate - 302
(i) Tea Estate - 72
(iil) Coffee Estate - 356
(&) Professional Charges Payable - 20
i Balanoar printers 454
fa) Amount Payable to Income Tax Department 91 376
Total 12,220 13,5&?
NOTE 8
SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS
a) Bonus to Employees 2,913 3,147
by Provision for Taxatian
c) Others 818
Total a7 3,147

o
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Rs. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 3103 2022
Particulars T T
NOTE 9
Poperty, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets
GROSSBLOCHK DEPRECIATION NETBLOCHK
A AR ASAT  ADDIMONS/ DEDUCTIONS:  ASAT | UPTO  FORTHE  WITHORAWN/  ASAT AS AT AS AT
01,04.2022 TRANSFER  TRANSFER 31032033 0104.2022  YEAR! TRAMSFERS 31032022 31.3.20083 113302
T 7 |4 z 7 TRANSFERS 4 7 T 7
Praparty (Fraahold) 2 AR 3 : 2,881 . : E g 2 1 2 861
Developmant to Plantation 3464 3044 BEG 5541 - - . - a.621 3464
Buildings (incl. Roads & Bridgas) | 68,955 . . 68955 46,671 1417 . 48,089 20 BEG 22,264
Plaat & Machinery 10851 1223 - 108797 61,184 3,87 : Bd 578 15218 1738
Furniure & Fittings etz 12,467 . . 12467 12,377 16 . 12,303 T4 an
Mater Vehicles 16,408 - 458 74854 15,192 nr 435 14,872 T8 1T
Tractirs & Trallors 4344 = < 4344 4343 - . 4,343 [ 0
Total 216073 4267 1344 218996 | 1.69.766 4947 435 174,278 44718 46307
Previous Year Figures 214,504 2837 1,267 216,074 164427 5,340 - 1.68.767 45,307 50078
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Particulars E4 ¥
NOTE 10
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments in Equity Instruments { At Cost)
{(Non Trading) QUOTED
a) 67,850 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of
Rs.2(- each in M.M.Rubber Co.Ltd. 136 136
UNQUOTED
a) 4,527 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Badra Estates and Industries Ltd. 101 101
b} 40,020 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Integrated Finance Co. Lid. 462 462
e) 532 Fully paid-up Equity Shares of
Rs.2/- each in Annaparai Estates Ltd. 5 5
e) 20,000 Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
of Mammen Mappillai Investments Iid. 200 200
f) 50,000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~
each of M.M.Research Co.Pvt.Ltd 500 500
g)  50,Fully Paid up Eauity Shares of Rs.100/-
each of Young India Group Estate Co-operative
Consumer Stores Lid., 5 5
i) ASK Investments PMS Pool Account 365 1,638 365
h}  Investment in Inde Bloom Limited(Associate
Company-49.99%){Equity Method)
Opening balance - 5,785
Add: Adjustment to Inter Company receivables - -
Adjusted Opening Balance - 5,785
Add/{Less): Increase/{Decrease) in BPIL share in Indo - {5,785)
Bloom Limited Networth(Associate Company-49.99%) —
Closing Balance 1,774 1,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fis. in thousands

As at 31.03.2023

As at 3103 2022

Particulars T 4
NOTE 11
LONG - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Other loans and advances:
(Un secured, considered good)
Due froem firms/companies in which Director is interested:
Indo Bloom Lid. 14,274 14,274
{b)Other Advances 290
14,274 14,564
NOTE 12
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
( Un secured, considered good)
(a) Unsecured, considered good
(i) Security Deposits 1,851 1,959
(b) Mon - Current Stock-in-Trade:
{iy Palm & Other Nursery Planis 3,135 3,135
(i) Teak Plantation under cultivation 17,982 17,429
370
23,338 22,523
NOTE 13
INVENTORIES
Stores and Spare Parts (At cost) 5214 4,283
{As valued and certified by the Management)
Total 5,214 4,283
Stock-in-Trade
(At cost or market value/average realised price, whichever is lower)
{As valued and cerified by the Management)
Current Stock-in-Trade:
Tea 3,561 5,208
Coffes 45,249 49,515
Rubber 823 Bi6
Pepper 2,456 2.219
Areca 2,871 3,663
54,960 61,411
Total 60,174 65,694
NOTE 14
Trade Receivables (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period lass than six months - 1,483
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months: 855 1,173
855 2,656
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Rs: In thousands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Particulars T T

Trade Receivables - Ageing Schedule Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

Less than i mnﬁths f-2year  2-3year More
£ months - 1 year than 3yr  Total
i} Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered good - . Calr 338 . 855
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful - - - - -
jity Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
v) Unbilled Trade Receivables - - - - 2 2
Total 0 o 517 338 - 855
NOTE 15
Cash and Cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 243 104

Balance with Banks:

Balance in Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 2,170 2,386
Balance In EEFC account with Scheduled Bank (US$ Nil)

Balance in Fixed Deposit Account with Schedule Bank

Other Bank Balances:

Balance in Current Account with a Scheduled 34

Bank representing Unclaimed Dividends

Balance In Fixed Deposit Account with a 3 3

Scheduled Bank({held as Security with Sales Tax Department)

Balance in Fixed Deposit Account with a 1,185

Schedule Bank { held as Security for issuing Bank Gaurantee) 1,238

Others:

Balance in Fixed Deposit Account 33,046 31,594
Total 36,701 35,306

NOTE 16

Short term loans and Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Officers and stalf loans:

To Staff 272 710
Other Advances:

Due from firms/Companies in which Directors are interested 228

Advances provided to Labour suppliers 3,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in housands

As at 31.03.2023 As at 3103 2022
Particulars T T
Advance provided to others 6,879 439
Prepaid insurance 934
Prepaid expenses 4
Balance with Government authorities 2,016 4,059
Loans and advances to Relted party 3 20
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits G661 517
Total 10,059 10,556
NOTE 17
Revenue from operations
i)  Sale of Manufactured Produce:
Tea 38,271 33,251
Coffes 71,626 67,850
Rubber 3,604 4,424
Araca 9,725 8,535
iy  Other Produce;
Pepper 8,162 9,033
Timber 7.623 7.276
Coconut 25 70
Falm & Other Nursery Plants 527 422
Others 377 660
1,39, 1,31,521
NOTE 18
Other Income
a) Interest Income
i) From Banks ( On Fixed Deposits ) 2,055 1.810
i) From Others 51 2,106
b) Dividend income form the investments
i) From Others 1
b) Curing charges received 1,427 1,780
c) Profit on Sale of Fixed Asseis{MNet) 27
d) Foreign exchange fluctuation 732 267
e} Sundry credit balances written back -
i Miscellaneous Receipts 1,11 679
(Including Duty drawback Rs.Nil} _.. i
5,404 4 538
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{Rs.0In Thousands)

Az at 31.03.2023 As at 31 0232022
Particulars T T
NOTE 19
Cost of materials consumed:
Teak Plantation- Cultivation expenses 554 m
Coffes curing charges 1,324 1.001
Consumplion of stores and spare parts 15,413 14.552
Power and fusl 8,614 7.078
25,905 23,342
Purchases :
Coffes 9114 4818
Argca 70 126
Pepper T34 1,263
9,918 6,207
Changes in inventories of finished goods
work-in- progress and stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock:
Tea 5,208 5,082
Rubber 816 534
Coffes 49,515 49,043
Other Produce:
Pepper 2,219 2.850
Areca 3,653 3.187
Palm and Other Nursery Plants 3,135 _ 3,135
Teak Plantation 17.429 16.718
~ B1,975 80,580
Closing Stock o o
Tea 3,561 5.208
Rubber 823 816
Coffes 45,249 49515
Other Produce:
Fepper 2,456 2,219
Areca 2,871 3,653
Paim & Othar Nursery Plants 3,135 3,135
Teak Plantation 17,982 17,429
76,077 £81.975
{Increase)/Decrease 5,898 {1.385)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 80.896 80.164
Contribution to Provident Fund
and Other Funds 4,944 4,651
Contribution to Approved Employees’
Gratuity Trust 2,040 1,817
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 5,800 5.600
93,680 92,232
Finance costs
Interest Paid - Banks T36 135
Others 1 12
Foreign exchange fluctuation _ -
737 147
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[Rs.In Thousands)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31 03.2022
Particulars T T
Other expenses
Repairs and Maintenancie:
Buildings 2072 2,513
Roads and Bridges 370 338
Machinery 2471 4913 3,030
Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 176 258
Certification and other services . .
Reimbursement of travelling Expenses - 176
Administrative Expenses:
Insurance 714 711
Rates and Taxes 491 367
Travelling and Conveyance 2157 1,531
Lighting Charges 1,194 1,243
Vehicle Maintenances 1,634 2,778
Repairs and Maintenance -
Miscellansous Expenses 1,954 2,122
Directors’ Sitting Fees 65 B5
Rent 663 627
Professional and Consultancy Fee 39
Selling And Distribution Expenses
Commission on Sales N 220
Transport Charges 1.665 1,976 691
Business pramotion expenses 107 -
Expenseas of Balnoor printers 16,044 16,551
Rs.in thousands
Particulars 2022 - 2023 2021 - 2022
20  Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
i) Bank charges MIL MIL
i) Foreign Travel 409 MIL
21 Consumption of Raw materials, Spare parts and Components
consumed during the year:
(i) Spare Parts and Components
a) Indigenous (100%) 15,413 14,552
22 Earnings in Fareign Currency
a} Export of Goods on F.O.B basis 35,228 11,056

23.  Amountremitted during the year in foreign currency on account of dividends: NIL

24. Proposed Dividends: Balanoor Plantations & Industries Ltd has not proposed any dividend for the year 2022-
23 out of the profils of the Company for the year due to insufficiency of available profits after taking into account
carried forward losses of previous years. There is no proposal of dividend distribution in case of Balanoor

Printers Ltd. for the year 2022-23.

25. Basic & diluted earnings of Rs (19.97) per share as on 31.3.2023 have been computed with reference to Loss of

Rs1.,23,17 in thousands.

26. Contingencies and Commitments:

Contingent Liabilities: Mil

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital not provided for: Nil

Bank Guaranteas: Nil
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt

A case has been filed by the Government of Kerala for their re-possession of about 115.89 Hectares of
Company's Property planted with Rubber & Coffee at Perinthalmanna, Kerala before the Hon'ble High Court of
Kerala & the same was challenged by the Company and the decision by the Hon'ble High Court of Kerala has
been pronounced and is against the Company and the Company filed an Appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme
Court. Pending hearing and final disposal of the said case, no adjustments are made in the accounts for the
same.

2B, Related Party Disclosure: The tfransactions entered into with related parties are given below:

A (a) Enterprise where control exists i) Indo Bloom Limited -Associate Company
iy Balanoor Printers Limited- Subsidiary Company
(b} Key Management Personnel Mr. Ashaok Kuriyan M.D
Mr. Mammen Eapen Director
{c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel Mr. K. K. Mammen Mappilai B/fo. M.O
Mr. Rohan Kuriyan, S/a M.D
Mrs. Omana Mammen, W/o Director
Mrs. Annamma Mammen,W/o Director
(d} The Member of key management in MM Housing Private Limited
commen
Balanoor Plantations Balanoor
Particulars Blndustries Ltd Printer Ltd Indo Bloom Ltd
22-23 21-22 22-23 | 21-22 22-23 21-22
(B). Transactions with
related parties
{?}1 L f{fjf:;ﬂif];“mpa“' 14273 14273 |NIL |NIL  |14273 | 14273
|b) Key Management
Personnel
(i) Remuneration 2802 3551 NIL NIL 540 564
(ii) Other Expenses 3,33 36 NIL NIL NIL NIL
(iii} Rent NIL NIL NIL NIL 360 360
({iv) Loans Obtained NIL NIL NIL NIL 4,869 4,123
(v} Loans Repaid NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
(ijRemuneration 828 792 NIL NIL NIL NIL
(ii)Salaries & Allowance 18 18 NIL NIL NIL NIL
(iii)Professional fees 240 240 NIL NIL MIL NIL
(1V) Rent 663 627
(iv)Other expenses 92 337 NIL NIL NIL NIL
The Member of key
management in common
()  Purchases 5,104 4,433 |NL |NIL | NIL NIL
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(C) Therelated parties have been identified based on the information available with the managemant.

29. Previous Years'figures have been reclassified, regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary.

30. During the year, the Group has ascertained that, there is no impairment to the Property after considering facts
obtained through internal and external sources.

31,  The company does not hold any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the
company for holding the benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

32, Thecompany is nol declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

33, The company does nal have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the company's acl
2013 or section 560 of the companies act, 1956.

35. The Group has not provided for Deferred tax liability, in accordance with AS 22{Accounting of Taxes on Income),
in view of continuing carmy forward losses.

36. Thereare noamounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as identified by the Company.

37, Gratuily liability valuation is carried oul and certified by the Managemenl. Such liability is discharged by way of
contribution to a Trust,

38. Segment Reporting: The Group's predominant primary segment operations relate to Plantation and Printing.
Fixed Assets used in the Group's business or liabilities contracted have not been identified to any of the
reportable segments, as such assets & liabilities to each segment is not practically allocable. '

PRIMARY SEGMENT INFORMATION: {Rs .in. Thousands)
Particulars Plantation Printing Total

Total Income 1.43,568 ] 1,777 1,45,344
Identifiable Operating Expenses (1,41,204) ] (108} (1,41,313)
Purchases (9,918) ] - {9,918)
Increase(+)/ Decrease(-) in stocks {5,898) | (5,808)
Segmental Operating Profit (13453) ] 1,669 (11785)
Un allocable Expanses '

Interest & Finance Charges |

Un-allocable Income |

Interest, Rent receivable etc. ]

TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAXES (13452) | 1,669 (11,785)
Taxes - ] (532) (532)
Met Profit after Taxes (13452) 1137 (12,317)
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39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

45.
46.
47.
48.
49.

50.

51.

Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group companies to or in any other
person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities ("intermediaries"}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Group companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Mo funds have been received by the Group companies from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Group companies shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Mo Company in the Group does not require to make expenditure under CSR activities as
specified under Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013.

There are no charges and satisfaction yel to be registered with the Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory periodason  31.03.2023.

The Companies in the group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause
(87) of the Section 2 of the Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers)Rules, 2017.

There are no approved schemes or arrangements which has been approved by the
Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has notrevalued any of the immovable properties during the year.

The Companies in Group neither holds nor has revalued intangibles during the vear.
Undisclosed income : Nil.

The Company has not traded orinvested in any Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

Accounting software with Audit Trail: Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies(Accounts)
Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using  accounting software which has feature of
recording Audit Trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April1,2023.

Capital Work in Progress: Nil
Intangible Assets Under Development: Nil

The title deeds of the Immovable property held by the Companies in Group are in the name of
the Respective Companies. However, as per the audit Report of Associated company the
following properties relating to Associated company Khata transferis in the process

63



Description of Gross Carrying | Held in Whether promoter, | Period held - |Reason for not
property value name of director or their indicate range, | being held in
relative or employee | where the name of
appropriate company
2 Acres 8 Guntas 1,96,500.00 R.R. Harinath Title deeds are
of land situated at BN& held in the
5.M. Gollahalli 5 R.Ravindra name of the
village, Kasaba company.
Habli Doddballapur However tansfer
Taluk, Bangalore of Katha in
Rural - 561203 the name of
beanng survey company is
Mo 20/2. in process.
3 Acres 24 Guntas | 4,51,000.00 R.R. Harinath BN Title deeds are
of land situated at & SR Ravindra Eﬁﬁé"o?“tﬁe
Aralu Mallige company.
viliage, Kasaba However,

Habli Doddballapur tansfer of Katha
Taluk, Bangalore in the name of
Rural -, 561203 company Is in
. process.

bearng survey

Mo 327/

Mew No.473

22 Guntas of land 98,000.00 K.K.Mammen Title deeds are

situated at S.M.
Gollahalli village,
Kasaba Hobli

Daddballapur Taluk,

Bangalore Rural -
561203 bearing
survey No 20/2

Mappillai

held in the name
of the company.
However,
tansfer of Katha
in the name af
company isin
process.
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52.Financial Ratios

S| Reasons
Nl':l- Ratios Mumerator | Denominator F-Y 2022-23 |F-Y 2021-22| % change (If 1&;;;?95
1 |({a) Current ratic Current Assets| Current 3.165 4.162 23.85
Liabilities
2 |(b) Debt-Equity ratio | Total Debl Shareholder's MNA MNA MA
Equity
3 |(c) Debt Service EBITDA + Interest &
Coverage ratio Other Mon- Lease
Cash ltems Payments +
Principal
repayments MA MA MA,
4 | (d) Returm on MPAT Shareholder's
equity ratio Equity -0.127 -0.062 104.84
5 |(e) Inventory Cost of goods | Average
turnover ratio sold Inventary
(Opening +
Closing
balance [ 2) 0412 0.430 4,369
6 |f) Trade Receivables | Revenue from | Average
turnover ratio aperations Accounts
Receivable
(Opening +
Closing
balance [ 2) 78.24 56.644 39.691
7 |(g) Trade payables | Purchases of | Average In the current
turnover ratio Goods and Trade year the
other services | Payable 17.08 21.180 (19.358) | Group has
utilized
overdraft to
pay off trade
payables
resulling in
significant
variance

G5




sl o Reasons
HI; Ratios Numerator Denominator F-Y 2022-23 |F-Y 2021-22 change (If ﬁ: ;;%’;9“
8 | {h) Net capital Revenue from | Average Working
turnover ratio operations Capital (Working
capital= current
Asseals - curren
liabilities) 1.889 1.498 26.017
9 | (i) Net profit ratio Met Profit Revenue from
(After Tax) operations {0.088) (0.051) {72.549)
10 | {j) Returm on Capital
employed EBIT Capital
Employed {0.114) (0.038) (200)
11 | (k) Return on Income Cost of
investment generated | Investment
form the
investments Nil Nil - -

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reqg. Mo, 0053895)

MA Ravishankar
(Partner)
M.NO.: 023269

Place: Bangalare
Date : 01-08-2023

Zachariah Kuriyan

Director

DIN:DO078108

For and an behalf of the board

Ashok Kuriyan
Managing Director
DIN:00081374

Placa
Data

Bangaluru
: 28-08-2023
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: UT0M02KATOTAPLCO02641
Regd. Office: “Empire Infantry”, 3rd Floor, No. 29, Infantry Road Bengaluru - 580 001

FORM NO MGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Mame of the Member(s)

Regislered address

E-mail 1D . . L

Falio No. N | | R 1

I We, baing the membar(s) of BALANOOR PLANTATIONS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED hereby appoint

1L Mame: oo

L - P

T | 3 R B UL e s 4y Ry sy
AR LTI o |18y - N aetetenrerrnpeneroepes (1)1 SNENENE A S

or failing him

2. 1 [+ 11 - D e S R Lot R L Rt

A s e s s e v e ot Ay A L B e Sl

B e s iy e fr e e T e o e T ey e et T B B i erei
R R T e S il

orfailing him

3. I D B e e e e D e R D S L i

Bl L L i

BT e e e L e L B L A G el

..................................................................... Ly e N R T Tl

as myfour proxy to attend and vole (on a poll} for mefus and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 29th September, 2023 at 12.00 Noon at Hotel Paraag, 3, Ra] Bhavan Road,
Bengaluru — 560001 and at any adjournmeant thereof in respect of such resolutions as ame indicated below:

Ftus:lnl:tmn Rasclutiona FOR AGAINST

Ordinary Business

l Approval of Financial statements for the financial year 2022-23,
Rotation of Mr. Roy Mammen (DIN 00077409} as Director

Rotation of Mr. Rivad Mathew (DIN 00627762) as Dinecior

bl el o e

To appoint Mis, Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan, Chartered
Accountants (FRN; D053885) as Statutory Auditors of the Company

Signed this ..o riemnnnns . day of oo 2023, Affix

Pe.ii-
Revenue
Stamp

Signatuns of Shareholder .. ciammmiesmseamim s o s s i

Signature of Proxy NOIGEIIE) v iemimiii i i isiioasiasine isnravasasineii
Member's Signature

NOTE: This Form in order 1o ba affective should be duly compéeted and deposited at the Registered Offica of the Company nol lass than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting,
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BALANOOR PLANTATIONS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: U70102KA1974PLCO02641
Regd. Office: "Empire Infantry”, 3rd Floor, No. 29, Infantry Road Bengaluru - 560 001

ATTENDANCE SLIP
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, 29th SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 12.00 Moon
At Holel Paraag, 3, Raj Bhavan Road, Bengaluru — 560001,

Folio Mo.:
Mame of the Mamber: Signature:
Name of the Proxy holder: Signature:

Only Member/Proxy holder can atlend the meeting.
Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for refarence at the Meeting
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